
 

 

 
 

September 1, 2016 
 

NOTICE OF REGULAR MEETING OF THE 
COLORADO RIVER BOARD 

 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN pursuant to the call of the Chairperson, Dana B. 
Fisher, Jr., by the undersigned Executive Director of the Colorado River Board of 
California that a regular meeting of the Board Members is to be held as follows: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
The Colorado River Board of California welcomes any comments from members 
of the public pertaining to items included on this agenda and related topics.  Oral 
comments can be provided at the beginning of each Board meeting; while written 
comments may be sent to Mr. Dana B. Fisher, Jr., Chairperson, Colorado River 
Board of California, 770 Fairmont Avenue, Suite 100, Glendale, California, 
91203-1068. 

 
An Executive Session may be held in accordance with provisions of Article 9 
(commencing with Section 11120) of Chapter 1 of Part 1 of Division 3 of Title 2 
of the Government Code and in accordance with Sections 12516 and 12519 of the 
Water Code to discuss matters concerning interstate claims to the use of Colorado 
River System waters in judicial proceedings, administrative proceedings, and/or 
negotiations with representatives from other states or the federal government. 
 
Requests for additional information may be directed to: Ms. Tanya M. Trujillo, 
Executive Director, Colorado River Board of California, 770 Fairmont Avenue, 
Suite 100, Glendale, CA  91203-1068, or 818-500-1625.  A copy of this Notice 
and Agenda may be found on the Colorado River Board’s web page at 
www.crb.ca.gov. 
 
A copy of the meeting agenda, showing the matters to be considered and 
transacted, is attached 

 
Tanya M. Trujillo 
Executive Director 

 

Date: Wednesday, September 14, 2016   
Time: 1:00 p.m. 
Place:  The Metropolitan Water District of Southern California 
 Weymouth Water Treatment Plant - Water Quality Lab 
 Room 2-11 
 700 North Moreno Ave. 
 La Verne, CA 91750 



 

 

Regular Meeting 
COLORADO RIVER BOARD OF CALIFORNIA 

Wednesday, September 14, 2016 
1:00 p.m. 

 
The Metropolitan Water District of Southern California 

Weymouth Water Treatment Plant  
Water Quality Lab – Room 2-11 

700 North Moreno Ave. 
La Verne, CA 91750 

 
At the discretion of the Board, all items appearing on this agenda, whether or not expressly listed 
for action, may be deliberated upon and may be subject to action by the Board.  Items may not 
necessarily be taken up in the order shown. 
 
1. Call to Order 
 
2. Opportunity for the Public to Address the Board (Limited to 5 minutes) 

In accordance with California Government Code, Section 54954.3(a) 
 

3. Administration 
a. Consideration and approval of the Minutes of the Meeting held August 11, 2016 

(Action) 
 

4. Colorado River Basin Water Reports 
 

a. Reports on current reservoir storage, reservoir releases, projected water use, and 
forecasted river flows 

 b. State and Local Water Reports 
 
5. Review and consideration of Applications for Lower Colorado Water Supply Project 

water (Action) 
 
6. Staff reports regarding Colorado River Basin Programs 

a. Review status of Basin States drought contingency planning  
b. Review status of the Colorado River Basin Water Supply and Demand Study 
c. Review status of Minute 319 and Minute 32x 
d. Review status of the Salinity Control Forum, Workgroup, and Advisory Council  
e. Review status of the Glen Canyon Dam Adaptive Management Work Group and 

Long-Term Experimental Management Plan EIS 
f. Review status of the Lower Colorado River Multi-Species Conservation Program 

 
7. Announcements/Notices 
 
8. Executive Session 

An Executive Session may be held by the Board pursuant to provisions of Article 9 



 

 
 

(commencing with Section 11120) of Chapter 1 of Part 1 of Division 3 of Title 2 of the 
Government Code and Sections 12516 and 12519 of the Water Code to discuss matters 
concerning interstate claims to the use of Colorado River system waters in judicial 
proceedings, administrative proceedings, and/or negotiations with representatives from 
other states or the federal government. 

 
10. Other Business 
 

a.   Next Board Meeting:  Regular Meeting 
        October 12, 2016 
        10:00 a.m. 
        Vineyard Room 

           Holiday Inn Ontario Airport  
           2155 East Convention Center Way 
           Ontario, CA  91764-4452 

        Tel: (909) 212-8000, Fax: (909) 418-6703 
 



 1 

Minutes of Meeting 
COLORADO RIVER BOARD OF CALIFORNIA 

Thursday, August 11, 2016 
 

 A meeting of the Colorado River Board of California was held at the Los Angeles 
Department of Water and Power in Bishop, California. Thursday, August 11, 2016 

 
 

Committee Members and Alternates Present 
 
Stephen Benson 
Brian Brady 
Dana Bart Fisher, Jr., Chairman 
Jeanine Jones 
Peter Nelson 
Glen D. Peterson 

David R. Pettijohn 
John Powell, Jr.  
Jack Seiler 
David Vigil 
Doug Wilson 

 
Committee Members and Alternates Absent 

 
James Hanks      Christopher Hayes 
Hank Kuiper 
Michael Touhey 

Others Present

Steve Abbott  
Marty Adams 
Robert Cheng 
Dan Denham 
Matt Dessert 
Karen Donovan 
Castulo Estrada 
Andrew Fisher 
Sally Fisher 
Norma Sierra Galindo 
Serge Haddad 
Christopher Harris 
Bill Hasencamp 
Scott Houston 
Michael Hughes 
Lisa Johansen 

Eric Katz 
Andrew Leimgruber 
Ronald C. Leimgruber 
Sara Leimgruber 
Jessica Lovecchio 
Jan Matusak 
Vic Nguyen 
Fernando Paludi 
Autumn Plourd 
Angela Rashid 
Tom Ryan 
Tina Shields 
Darren Simon 
Tanya Trujillo 
Gerald Zimmerman 



 2 

 

CALL TO ORDER 
 

Chairman Fisher announced the presence of a quorum and called the meeting to order at 
11:05 A.M.  

 
WELCOME  
 

General Manager Adams with the Los Angeles Department of Water and Power 
welcomed everyone to the Owens Valley, Inyo County and Mono Basin to see the Los Angeles 
Aqueduct system.  He acknowledged the similarities between the environmental mitigation 
projects in the Owens Valley and projects proposed for the Salton Sea. Mr. Adams also thanked 
the speakers from his staff that were present and provided vital information during the tour.  He 
also introduced Jeff Griffiths, the Chair of the County Board of Supervisors for Inyo County.  
Mr. Griffiths also welcomed everyone and acknowledged the county’s long relationship with the 
Los Angeles Department of Water and Power.  

 
OPPORTUNITY FOR THE PUBLIC TO ADDRESS THE BOARD 

 
Chairman Fisher invited anyone in the audience to address the Board on items on the 

agenda or matters related to the Board. 
  

Consideration and Approval of the Minutes 
 

Chairman Fisher asked for a motion to approve the June 15, 2016 meeting minutes.  Mr. 
Benson moved that the minutes be approved, seconded by Mr. Pettijohn, and by unanimous 
support, the June 15, 2016 meeting minutes were approved.   

 
 

COLORADO RIVER BASIN WATER REPORTS  
 
Colorado River Basin Water Reports and State and Local Water Reports 

 
Ms. Trujillo reported that as of, August 1, the Colorado River Basin system was 52% of 

capacity.  Lake Mead was 36% of capacity, while storage in Lake Powell was 56%.  Ms. Trujillo 
stated that Lake Mead’s elevation was 1072.2 feet, noting that in late July, Lake Mead hits its 
lowest level on record but its elevation is slowly increasing. The preliminary observed April to 
July 2016 runoff to Lake Powell was 92% of normal.  Ms. Trujillo noted that on August 15, 
2016, Reclamation will be releasing the August 24-Month study which will be used to set the 
operating tiers for reservoir operations in 2017.  For 2017, recent projections show that 9.0 



 3 

million acre-feet will be released from Lake Powell and that Lake Mead will be operating under 
a normal or surplus year for the Lower Basin.  Ms. Trujillo reported that for 2018, Reclamation’s 
current projections indicate that there is a 50% chance of hitting the first level of shortage under 
the 2007 Guidelines. 

 
Ms. Trujillo reported that the second consultation meeting for the Annual Operating Plan 

(AOP) was held at the end of July in Las Vegas, Nevada.  Public drafts are available on 
Reclamation’s website.  Ms. Trujillo reiterated that the AOP governs the operation of all the 
reservoirs in the system.  Further, Ms. Trujillo reported that during the meeting she provided a 
brief annual report on California’s compliance with the Colorado Water Use Plan, which 
included reporting of various conservation efforts, canal linings, transfers and fallowing 
programs that have been implemented over the past several years and concluded that California 
has exceeded the targets that were established in the 2007 Guidelines for California’s agricultural 
water use reductions.  Her report also included an update on the status of California’s drought. 

 
State and Local Reports 

 
Mr. Benson reported on the status of Imperial Irrigation District’s transfers to the 

Coachella Valley Water District and the San Diego County Water Authority as required by the 
Quantification Settlement Agreement.  Mr. Benson reported that IID currently has an over 
100,000 acre-feet underrun and is scheduled to store 25,000 acre-feet in Lake Mead as 
Intentionally Created Surplus.  

 
Ms. Jones reported that the California Department of Water Resources has released the 

results of the Spring Statewide Groundwater Level Monitoring from the California Statewide 
Groundwater Elevation Monitoring program on its website.  The results indicated continued 
declines in the San Joaquin Valley and significant decline in the Ventura Coastal Plain.  

 
Mr. Peterson reported that it is anticipated that the Metropolitan Water District will 

deliver the same amount of water it received last month.  To date, MWD has delivered 82% of its 
average interim deliveries which indicates that their member agencies are still conserving water.  

 
Vice Chairman Wilson reported that SDCWA conservation targets have been reduced 

because it has passed the State’s “stress test”, certifying that it has three years of dry year storage 
available.  Mr. Wilson reported that SDWCA has met and exceeded the State’s mandated 
conservation targets, conserving 22% over a 13-month period of time. Mr. Wilson noted that 
SDWCA is still advising customers to conserve water. 

 
Mr. Pettijohn stated that the LADWP has also passed the stress test and is no longer 

required to implement the State mandated conservation target.  Mr. Pettijohn explained that aside 



 4 

from the State mandated conservation targets, the City of Los Angeles, under direction of the 
Mayor, has set a goal to improve water efficiency and reduce its use to 104 gallon per capita per 
day.  Further, despite passing the stress test, the City of Los Angeles will continue water use 
restrictions.  Mr. Pettijohn reported that the LADWP recently adopted the 2015 Urban Water 
Management Plan which outlines the levels of water use efficiency that the City of Los Angeles 
hopes to achieve.  Mr. Pettijohn stated that LADWP is exporting 100,000 acre-feet from the LA 
Aqueduct system and leaving a lot of water in the Owens Valley watershed for environmental 
maintenance and enhancement.  Mr. Pettijohn explained that LADWP water supplies are very 
closely integrated with the Delta and the Colorado River systems because if LADWP exports 
less water from the Owens Valley it needs to purchase more water from MWD to supplement its 
supply.  These actions affect MWD’s incremental supplies in the Delta, its land fallowing 
programs tied to the Colorado River systems and the water supply needs of its member agencies.  

 
Mr. Nelson reported that Coachella Valley Water District has also certified that it has 

three years of dry-year storage and no longer needs mandatory conservation. In July 2016, 
CVWD conserved 28% and 36% over a ten-year average.  He also reported that CVWD has 
removed over 6 million square feet of turf.  CVWD continues to recharge the aquifer with 
Colorado River water and the Board is in the process of developing policies to address the 
aquifer’s overdraft issues using QSA water. 

 
Ms. Trujillo reported that as of August 1, the State Water Project reservoirs were at 57% 

of capacity.  
 
 

Drought Contingency Planning 
 
Ms. Trujillo reported that the drought contingency planning efforts are still underway and 

that there have been no new developments.  Ms. Trujillo reported that during the latest meeting, 
which involved managers from California, Arizona, Nevada and the Commissioner of 
Reclamation the attendees reviewed the status of the planning efforts and discussed the potential 
for coming to an agreement by the end of the year, before the transition of the new federal 
government.  Ms. Trujillo reiterated that the California agencies would like the agreement to 
include increased operational flexibility regarding ICS retrieval below the existing shortage 
triggers outlined in the 2007 Guidelines and that there should be incentives for creating 
additional storage in Lake Mead.  The ultimate goal of the drought contingency planning process 
is to avoid hitting critically low levels at Lake Mead.  Responding to a question from Mr. Wilson 
regarding the timeline for California to finalize an agreement, Ms. Trujillo stated that each 
agency would have an opportunity for its Board to review the agreement and would determine its 
own approval process.   

 



 5 

Mr. Benson asked whether there have been discussions regarding the Salton Sea 
Memorandum of Understanding with the State of California. Ms. Trujillo responded that the 
federal government recognizes the significant challenges within California regarding the Bay 
Delta and the Salton Sea.  She noted that the California Natural Resources Department has 
established an Assistant Secretary positions for the Salton Sea and has been holding meetings to 
discuss the restoration efforts.  The federal government is interested in putting together a MOU 
between the Department of the Interior and the State Natural Resources Department.  Chairman 
Fisher noted that in addition to finalizing the Salton Sea MOU and Bay Delta issues, the federal 
government will also continue its work in the Yuma area to create 100,000 acre-feet to offset 
water released via the Bypass for Minute 242 operations. 

 
Salinity Control Forum 
 
 Ms. Trujillo reported that the next Forum meeting is scheduled for the end of October in 
Moab, Utah and will include a tour and 20th anniversary celebration for the Paradox Disposal 
Well.  Ms. Trujillo reiterated that the Paradox Well has far exceeded its projected useful life and 
an EIS process is underway to replace the well.  It is anticipated that the EIS will be completed 
by 2018.  Ms. Trujillo reported that the EIS is considering three options for salt disposal which 
include constructing a new injection well, surface evaporation ponds, and a commercial disposal 
concept.  Ms. Trujillo also reported that the Forum is developing a video to highlight the 
successes of the Salinity Control Program. The primary source of funding for the Salinity 
Control Program is from power revenues from the Hoover Dam.  California contractors represent 
the largest purchasers of energy from the Hoover Dam and contributors to the program.  
 
Minute 319/32x 
 
 Ms. Trujillo reported that the bi-national negotiation group has had three negotiation 
sessions since June 2016.  It is anticipated that a draft framework of the new Minute may be 
completed by the end of September.  Ms. Trujillo stated that the new Minute would include 
similar provisions to Minute 319 such as the provision for Mexico to share in shortages if there 
are shortages in the U.S.  The new Minute will also include a project component, which will give 
U.S. funders the opportunity to invest in conservation projects in Mexico, resulting in increased 
water for water users in the U.S.  Ms. Trujillo reported that the environmental flows team would 
probably not recommend an additional pulse flow release but rather utilize their water to 
maintain existing habitat in Mexico.  The new Minute’s provisions may extend through the 2026 
timeframe so that they are in-sync with the 2007 Guidelines.  Ms. Trujillo added that the 
Mexican negotiators are currently reviewing how Reclamation analyzes and develops the 
hydrology projections so that they are comfortable with Reclamation’s operating procedures for 
the reservoir system.  
 



 6 

Glen Canyon Dam Adaptive Management Program 
 
 Ms. Trujillo stated that the Glen Canyon Dam Adaptive Management Program evaluates 
the various resource goals along the river through the Grand Canyon, from Lake Powell down to 
Lake Mead.  An EIS process has been underway for several years to evaluate and determine new 
operating criteria for that region.  Ms. Trujillo stated that completion of the EIS is also driven by 
the deadline for the federal administration transition.  A Record of Decision is anticipated within 
the next few months.  The next Adaptive Management Group meeting is scheduled for the end of 
August in Flagstaff, Arizona.  
 
 
Multiple Species Conservation Program 
 

Mr. Harris reported that the Fiscal Year 2017 budget has been approved, which is 
approximately $30 million for program implementation.  He also reported that Reclamation 
finalized the Accomplishment Reports for 2015, which details the amount of habitat created and 
fish repatriated to the river system.  Mr. Harris added that and Reclamation is working to fill a 
position for a Biological Program Manager as one of the program’s key biologists accepted a 
position with the National Park Service. The next meeting for the Workgroup is scheduled for 
September and a Steering Committee meeting is scheduled for late October.  Mr. Harris added 
that copies of the program’s annual California Endangered Species Act (CESA) Compliance 
Report were submitted to Chris Hayes and David Vigil with the Department of Fish and 
Wildlife.  Mr. Harris explained that the report outlines the progress made toward meeting the 
program’s CESA obligations. 
 
ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 

Ms. Trujillo reported that Jennifer Gimbel, Acting Assistant Secretary for Water and 
Science has retired and moved back to Colorado.  She also noted that she thinks Mike Connor, 
Deputy Secretary of the Interior and Estevan Lopez, Commissioner of the Bureau of 
Reclamation plan to stay with the administration through January 20, 2017, the federal 
administration transition deadline.  

 
Ms. Trujillo reported that planning for the Colorado River Water Users Association 

(CRWUA) conference is underway and the conference will be held on December 14 -16, 2016.  
A Colorado River Board meeting will be held in conjunction to the conference. 
 

 
ADJOURNMENT  
 

With no further items to be brought before the Board, Chairman Fisher asked for a 
motion to adjourn the meeting. Upon the motion of Mr. Pettijohn, seconded Mr. Nelson, and 
unanimously carried, the meeting was adjourned at 11:52 P.M. 













Upper Colorado Region Water Resources Group  
River Basin Tea-Cup Diagrams 



NOAA National Weather Service Monthly Precipitation Maps for July and August 2016 
 



USDA United States Drought Monitor Map 

 
 

   

 



 



9/8/2016

1

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP

C
um

ul
at

iv
e 

In
ch

es

Los Angeles Civic Center Precipitation

Wettest year on record
1883-1884

Average Year

2014-2015

Driest year on record
2006-2007

Precipitation values as of the end of each month

2015-2016

1997-1998 El Nino

Precipitation at Six Major Stations in Southern California

From October 1, 2015  to September1, 2016

Precipitation in inches Average Percent of

Station Aug Oct 1 to Sep 1 to Date Average

San Luis Obispo 0.00 12.55 22.18 57%

Santa Barbara 0.00 10.21 17.57 58%

Los Angeles 0.00 6.88 15.01 46%

San Diego 0.00 6.88 9.98 69%

Blythe 0.14 2.00 3.42 58%

Imperial 0.00 0.83 2.59 32%



9/8/2016

2

Northern Sierra Precipitation-8 Station Index

California Data Exchange Center 
http://cdec.water.ca.gov/cgi-progs/products/PLOT_ESI.pdf

San Joaquin Precipitation: 5-Station Index

California Data Exchange Center 
http://cdec.water.ca.gov/cgi-progs/products/PLOT_FSI.pdf



9/8/2016

3

Tulare Basin Precipitation: 6-Station Index

California Data Exchange Center 
http://cdec.water.ca.gov/cgi-progs/products/PLOT_TSI_HIST.pdf

Current Reservoir 
Conditions

http://cdec.water.ca.gov/cdecapp/resapp/getResGraphsMain.action



9/8/2016

4

Comparison of SWP Water Storage

State Water Project Projected Deliveries: 
As of April 21, 2016, the Table-A allocations for 2016 is 60%

2015 Storage
(acre-feet)

2016 Storage
(acre-feet)

As of % of As of % of
Reservoir Capacity Sep 1 Cap. Sep 1 Cap.
Frenchman 55,475 13,606 25% 18,602 34%

Lake Davis 84,371 39,483 47% 48,425 57%

Antelope 22,564 18,388 81% 18,737 83%

Oroville 3,553,405 1,070,070 30% 1,827,949 51%

TOTAL North 3,715,815 1,141,547 31% 1,913,713 52%

Del Valle 39,914 35,235 88% 37,500 94%

San Luis (DWR) 1,062,180 361,789 34% 263,998 25%

Pyramid 169,901 168,459 99% 168,049 99%

Castaic 319,247 120,561 38% 244,349 77%

Silverwood 74,970 70,506 94% 69,951 93%

Perris 126,841 46,698 37% 48,020 38%

TOTAL South 1,793,053 803,248 45% 831,867 46%

TOTAL SWP 5,508,868 1,944,795 35% 2,745,580 50%

Oroville Storage (acre-feet)

October 1, 2007 – September 1, 2016

0

500,000

1,000,000

1,500,000

2,000,000

2,500,000

3,000,000

3,500,000

4,000,000

Oct-07 Oct-08 Oct-09 Oct-10 Oct-11 Oct-12 Oct-13 Oct-14 Oct-15 Oct-16 Oct-17



1

MWD’s Combined Reservoir Storage
as of September 1, 2016

Lake Skinner, Lake Mathews, and Diamond Valley Lake
Total Capacity = 1,036,000 Acre-Feet

76% 87% 95% 81% 83% 77% 89% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
0

50,000

100,000

150,000

200,000

250,000

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

2016 Water Deliveries to Member Agencies (AF)

Delivery (AF) 10‐Year Avg. % of Monthly Avg.

Total Delivery This Year: 922.0 TAF
Average Total Delivery to Date: 1.10 MAF
84% of Annual Average to Date 



DRAFT

W A T E R    Y E A R    2 0 1 7

August 2016

 Making seasonal forecasts of precipitation – 
the ability to predict now if 2017 will be wet 
or dry (and how wet or dry) – is scientifically 
difficult, and the accuracy of such predictions 
is very low, much less than that of a 
seven-day weather forecast. 

 Scientists consider teleconnections (recurring 
and persistent, large-scale patterns of pres-
sure and circulation anomalies over import-
ant regions of the globe that correlate with 
climate at a site of interest) when 
attempting to make seasonal 
climate forecasts. 

 The El Niño-Southern Oscillation 
(ENSO) is one of the most studied 
climate phenomena, and one 
that can provide some predictive 
guidance in parts of the United 
States under certain conditions. 
ENSO is characterized by 
year-to-year fluctuations in sea 
surface temperatures along the 
equator in the Pacific Ocean between Peru 
and the International Date Line, and simulta-
neous fluctuations in sea level air pressures 
between Tahiti and Darwin, Australia. The 
ENSO cycle is expressed as three states: 
neutral conditions, El Niño (warm ocean 
phase), and La Niña (cold ocean phase). 

 The National Oceanic and Atmospheric 
Administration’s Climate Prediction Center 
classifies current ENSO conditions as neutral, 
with slightly better than even odds that these 
neutral conditions will transition to weak La 
Niña conditions this fall and winter. 

 The graphics on the reverse show the 
relationship over an 80-year period between 
measured precipitation in each of California’s 
climate divisions (see indicator map) and 
ENSO conditions, expressed as the Southern 
Oscillation Index, a measure of air pressure 
fluctuations between Tahiti and Darwin, 
Australia. The strongest El Niño and La Niña 
events plot on the far left and far right sides 
of the graphics, respectively. 

   ENSO’s strongest signal in Califor-
nia is for Southern California to 
be drier than average in La Niña 
years. California’s large 
year-to-year variability and the 
importance of a few individual 
large storms prevent using ENSO 
alone to predict seasonal precipi-
tation outcomes for California. 

   Floods can happen in any given 
winter.  Some major floods 
(December 1955, December 

1964, February 1986, and New Year 1997) 
have occurred in La Niña and neutral years.

 Of the 18 La Niña winters since 1950-51, 
16 have provided below average precipita-
tion for Southern California’s coastal region 
(region 6), and 15 winters have resulted in 
below average precipitation for Southern 
California’s interior region (region 7).  Water 
year 2011 contained the only significantly 
wet La Niña event in this time period.

 Conversely, when La Niña conditions were in 
place during winter from 1950-51, above 
average precipitation was recorded in 
11 years for the Northern Sierra and in 
8 years for the Central and Southern Sierra.

Will La Niña Make a Difference?

Seasonal 
forecasts of 

precipitation 
are difficult 

and much less 
accurate than a 
7-day weather 

forecast.



NeitherEl Niño La Niña

Mean = 44.9 in
Mean = 41.53 in
Mean all = 41.51 in
Mean = 40.15 in

NeitherEl Niño La Niña

Mean = 32.83 in
Mean all = 29.44 in
Mean = 28.8 in
Mean = 28.0 in

NeitherEl Niño La Niña

Mean = 16.19 in
Mean all = 15.39 in
Mean = 15.37 in
Mean = 14.79 in

NeitherEl Niño La Niña

Mean = 22.63 in
Mean all = 18.61 in
Mean = 18.31 in
Mean = 15.99 in

NeitherEl Niño La Niña

Mean = 19.21 in
Mean all = 16.83 in
Mean = 16.83 in
Mean = 14.91 in

NeitherEl Niño La Niña

Mean = 19.89 in
Mean = 15.45 in
Mean all = 15.30 in
Mean = 11.27 in

NeitherEl Niño La Niña

Mean = 6.01 in
Mean = 4.65 in
Mean all = 4.50 in
Mean = 2.98 in

Years 1933/34 through 2013/14 • October - March (winter) precipitation by Climate Division versus  
                                                                   Southern Oscillation Index for immediately proceeding June - November 

Key: climate divisions



1 
 

RESOLUTION 
of the 

COLORADO RIVER BOARD OF CALIFORNIA 
Regarding 

Potential Applicant to Receive 
Lower Colorado Water Supply Project Water 

2016-1 
 
WHEREAS, the United States Congress, on November 14, 1986, enacted the Lower Colorado Water Supply Act (P.L. 
99-655) (amended through P.L. 109-103), to authorize the construction and operation of the Lower Colorado Water 
Supply Project (Project) to provide a limited amount of Colorado River water to be made available on an exchange basis 
to entities in California, whose lands are located adjacent to the Colorado River, and who either do not have any, or do 
not have a sufficient, contractual entitlement to use Colorado River water; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Needles has agreed to assume the administrative responsibility for Project beneficiaries in San 
Bernardino, Riverside, and Imperial Counties; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Colorado River Board provides recommendations to the U.S. Bureau of Reclamation (Reclamation) 
regarding the eligibility of non-federal applicants to receive Project water; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Colorado River Board on September 14, 2001, notified owners of property within the Colorado River 
flood plain and/or the accounting surface as delineated by the U.S. Geological Survey in California of the availability of 
Project water; and 
 
WHEREAS, the staff of the Colorado River Board on September 14, 2016, submitted the eligible applicants to the 
Board for its recommendation; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Colorado River Board hereby recommends a subcontract for 
Project water be offered to the applicants listed on the attachment and directs the Executive Director to forward the 
application to Reclamation with its recommendation with the following provisos: 
 

(1) The applicants appear to be eligible to receive Project water, as shown in the attached table and 
summarized below: 

 
County Numbers 

of Parcels 
Current Use 

(AF/YR) 
Future Use 
(AF/YR) 

Total Use 
(AF/YR) 

San Bernardino 3 2 1 3 
 

(2) At the time a subcontract is prepared, the annual quantity of water to be diverted, consumptively used, and 
returned will be refined to specify quantities of water to be reported in accordance with Article V in the 
Consolidated Decree in Arizona v. California, et al. entered March 27, 2006, (547 U.S. 150 (2006)); 

 
(3) Reclamation should include provisions in the subcontract that the water is to be put to reasonable 

beneficial use within a ten-year period of time, subject to renewal for another ten-year period. 
 

THE FOREGOING RESOLUTION is approved and adopted by the Colorado River Board, this 14th day of 
September 2016. 
 
 
      __________________________________ 
      Dana B. Fisher, Jr., Chairman 



!!!!
!!!
!!!!
!!!

!!!!
!!!!

!!!!!!

!!!!

!
!!
!
!!!

!
!

!!!

!

!
!

!!!
!!

!

!!!
!!! !!!!

!!
!!
!!
!!
!!!

!!!!!!
!!!!
!

!

!

!!!!!

!!
!!!!!
!!!
!!

!!
!!!

!!!!!
!!!
!!

!
!
!!
!!!
!

!

!!
!
!!!
!!

!
!!

!!

!!

!

!!!
!

!
!!!
!
!!

!!

!
!
!!!
!
!
!!!

!

!
!

!

!!!

!

!!

!!

!

!
!
!
!

!

!!
!!
!

!

!
! !

!

!!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!
!

!

!

!

!

!! !

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
! !! !

!

!!
!

!

!

!

!

! !

!

!

!

!

!!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

#

#

#

#

#

#

#

#

#

#

#

#

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

88

88

88

06

23

07

19

19

31

30

31

18

31

30

07

19

30

18

18

30

06

31

06

07

07

18

19

06

06

31

07

18

19

30

30

30

31

19

88

07

31

18

15

19

16

04 0305 02

06 05 04

03

35

03

22

01

0203
02

01
0401

01

03

04

05

05
05

06

05
04 05

06

02

02

0304

11

01 05

01

06
01

02

35

03

02

0206 04

11

11

01

04

0405 03

11

11

31

11

01

02

11

10

17

11

11

03

21

11

11

06

11

20

30

11

11

11

20

11

11

11

24 22

11

11

21

11

11

11

11

23

11

11

23

11

11

11

11

11

11

23

11

11

11

24

11

11

14

11

11

11

11

11

11

11

11

11

11

11

11

11

11

22

11

11

11

15

01

11

11

11

11

11

11

11

11

11

11

11

11

02

11

11

11

11

11

11

11

11

11

11

11

21

11

11

11

11

11

11

01

11

11

11

11

11

07

11

11

11

11

11

11

11

11

11

11

11

11

11

16

11

11

11

11

11

11

11

11

11

11

11

11

11

11

11

30

11

11

06

11

11

11

18

11

11

05

11

11

11

11

11

11

11

11

23

11

11
11

11

11

11

11

11

11

11

01

11

11

11

11

11

22

24

11

11

20

11

11

19
29

13

11

11

11

11

11

24

30

11

11

11

11

11

11

11

05

06

11

12

11

14

11

05

14

11 14

11

22

31

13

19

11

23

03

19

04

31

20

06

04

14

04

21

15

21

03

15

01

32

30

01

13

17

03

04

23

09

02

02

08

11

18

36

08

32

36

03

01

34

36

09

26

11

10

06

22

01

19

08

07

20

31

11

36

34

29

15

03

07

34

03

16

07

25

13

36

36

08

18

01

06

19

30

05

27

32

03

12

25

10

17

01

24

10

11

36

02

04

13

22

31

03

10

09

16

28

23

23

02

25

12

28

08

13

20

13

07

26

04

19

17

04

25

06

26

12

05

21

25

07

29

10

13

28

01

29

24

02

05

12

32

20

36

21

09

36

12

04

14

08

31

29

25

08

15

16

25

09

19

26

13

24

19

12

28

06

24

15

20

26

24

24

24

31

32

01

07

24

35

03

02

10

21

19

18

18

34

13

12

05

34

24

08

24

25

33

28

25

09

31

01

29

22

12

10

19

09

35

34

04

22

10

03

33

01

21

05

25

20

05

36

06

10

24

17

21

23

03

15

07

18

20

07

13

21

35

35

33

19

20

17

09

24

12

08

35

34

25

12

01

18

33

36

21

32

14

25

08

31

07

01

02

08

08

25

12

29

32

19

34

34

22

30

04

12

35

21

23

01

33

23

29

24

29

30

16

06

07

10

30

30

22

22

08

34

24

20

18

12

08

10

12

12

33

05

25

15

12

29

02

10

21

15

19

07

28

13

31

22

33

17

18

24

15

26

06

35

25

15

27

27

26

17

07

35
29

24

17

02

14

30

05

24

25

29

16

25

27

23

36

35

12

21

29

05

33

04

02

13

20

27

02

17

18

25

28

07

20

22

21

05

20

15

30

30 29

24

30

27

12

20

01

03

19

20

08

31

25

09

25

29

22

34

10

14

13

20

10

12

29

21

12

05

34

27

20

20

14

34

28

14

20

32

33

08

22

27

32

17

23

23

08

10

31

24

04

09

19

30

13

15

36

28

15

32

23

13

10

20

14

26

33

05

02

22

02

24

08

18

16

01

07

21

16

17

20

12

34

09

32

34

14

02

16

18

25

20

35

12

28

25

23

03

34

10

20

13

27

22

27

10

15

33

22

33

24

13

10

23

36

02

24

36

10

25

16

01

23

24

02

15

20

29

08

10

22

10

33

17

33

26

15

29

22

01

36

33

08

32

30

20

32

12

32

34

21

27

35

12

04

08

17

25

08

25

25

29

17

35

28

16

12

20

27

24

14

25

32

19

20

17

32

08

24

16

27

02

10

35

01

21

16

29

07

22

16

16

04

31

17

17

14

17

35

29

12

24

16

22

15

18

12

20

01

11

14

27

26

03

28

35

13

24

32

17

36

15

10

28

15

18

12

31

25

19

01

26

19

12

14

20

36

20

14

20

32

35

15

09

36

20

09

22

12

14

27

17

29

14

02

22

23

08

19

22

24

31

16

03

13

36

16

15

32

16

15

24

03

25

07

24

17

08

23

29

26

26

16

21

12

21

29

36

35

16

14

36

13

09

01

13

34

25

04

08

17

01

29

02

14

04

14

03

21

05

10

36

35

13

22

26

04

23

20

05

36

06

24

10

32

30

25

08

05

22

24

27

35

04

03

03

18

25

29

15

32

05

03

34

35

12

26

15

29

10

05

05

15

21

27

22

21

18

04

07

27

17

06

25

19

34

23

01

36

01

13

33

26

05

36

12

20

10

22

14

14

05

33

23

35

07

14

22

16

25

26

25

17

32

04

13

04

28

35

11

34

10

01

29

25

02

33

22

32

19

08

29

33

14

12

31

36

25

05

05

28

34

26

26

25

26

28

28

02

02

32

24

15

07

10

27

27

23

16

14

21

16

05

20

10

13

02

02
01

31

32

13

09

30

20

14

35

35

32

12

03

09

32

33

15

12

12

13

15

34

04

28

02

09

01

21

32

04

26

17

09

27

08

08

28

13

28

33

04

19

24

13

05

35

17

12 16

27

32

21

23

17

10

05

09

20

15

08

23

05

22

24

32

23

33

02

09

17

15

03

32

31

24

26

17

32

28

17

05

28

34

20

02

27

13

24

35

12

20

27

20

14

04

36

12

03

13

27

06

29

14

35

10

36

17

34

04

19

36

08

36

04

04

04

17

22

09

14

01

03

20

16

27

32

20

14

03

24

16

27

36

32

01

03

34

35

01

25

36

23

21

13

20

02

18

08

13

12

13

20

34

15

07

04

13

07

12

12

22

33

29

04

33

15

05

22

05

09

08

08

17

21

09

31

08

24

12

33

20

17

26

09

29

21

25

22

05

17

29

06

03

13

12

03

36

35

21

26

09

15

24

21

33

13

17

03

32

29

34

35

24

09

12

33

09

21

08

25

34

28

27

36
35

01

13

25

24

24

16

16

32

32

15

08

09

09

35

15

14

29

01

24

36

35

05

28

27

34

16

25

23

16

29

15

26

12

01

28

05

25

29

32

21

10

35

29

02

34

28

36

06

21

27

02

15

22

06

28

17

26

17

01

35

16

07

08

20

03

14

03

34

31

17

14

10

24

10

15

25

21

32

21

29

09

32

16

15

14

05

17

08

28

13

09

36

08

19

16

03

15

15

23

23

35

18

27

08

12

02

10

27

09

20

34

16

17

21

25

10

32

19

19

08

21

22

36

04

03

24

35

27

33

23

01

36

20

17

02

21

32

01

32

10

16

23

04

25

28

20

15

13

17

16

21

26

35

25

17

20

13

15

04

17

12

25

13

28

13

26

28

29

09

08

36

27

13

09

28

12

23

16

15

35

21

24

25

16

13

36

08

14

27

27

14

36

14

35

36

27

03

16

13

04

27

28

08

23

04

05

18

17

28

34

13

27

32

08

28

09

16

13

14

10

35

24

21

05

27

10

22

24

08

33

15

10

28

32

14

22

27

34

05

05

14

06

03

25

13

17

15

22

10

36

23

23

35

32

17

30

16

14

10

36

20

17

01

12

17

12

24

12

08

16

36

16

13

22

13

15

05

20

04

21

10

13

10

15

03

26

28

08

35

23

17

14

22

34

18

33

16

25

32

24

10

34

20

14

09

03

23

26

28

36

10

03

02

08

27

34

26

09

21

04

15

27

29

13

24

10

17

34

08

25

17

22

32

05

26

20

19

36

27

05

13

23

14 13

16

05

08

18

28

26

13

24

14

03

33

27

28

16

08

21

23

26

08

13

25

33

29

24

08

20

10

20

34

21

24

02

21

01

28

02

17

14

01

35

28

35

21

20

08

15

36

29

27

29

27

14

09

21

33

02

17

20

17
15

21

19

02

33

24

06

29

03

17

07

27

05

20

34

29

25

10

04

21

26

10

27

09

02

36

08

23

12

24

16

33

19

23

32

36

17
15

25

15

34

28

23

36

08

34

20

14

15

26

23 21

14

21

34

17

28

07

12

08

28

06

32

36

21

26

35

30

12

03

16

03

33

34

09

09

32

12

16

33

08

10

26

20

05

28

33

21

16

27

33

28

34

08

27

15

35

16

04

34 32

15

29

04

29

33

27

13

14

34

12

16

28

36

29

26

15

15

32

20

29

13

09

26

04

33

22

23

13

16

30

29

09

16

17

01

22

06

28

05

03

26

27

15

29

34

09

08

28

23

30

24

06

34

20

33

24

25

21

12

17

28

22

24

24

24

14

30

29

26

28

01

35

36

35

15

03

13

20

32

35

10

20

31

33

12

28

36

08

04

34

16

25

24

12

12

13

21

28

32

08

24

24

30

29

26

15

32

34

03

34

12

23

32

32

26

31

10

08

02

21

09

36

21

34

10

31

26

29

24

12

14

34

08

12

13

23

15

33

17

10

02

29

09

27

10

32

20

25

24

01

04

33

33

29

32

29

26

34

25

26

08

10

02

25

13

16

26

29

20

08

27

20

22

08

32

27

16

29

12

13

09

26

17

08

24

18

12

34

13

30

27

22

10

23

29

21

03

08

33

35

33

12

10

22

03

28

36

14

36

35

27

12

08

18

30

35

13

18

01

21

24

22

24

04

28

08

26

33

03

21

02

05

15

08

14

36

27

28

14

26

33

13

28

02

27

29

20

36

36

04

23

28

13
17

16

28

05

13

09

29

01

28

14

32

12

13

17

19

21

09

09

21

29

26

29

35

32

21

28

10

05

17

26

34

22

26

36

16

16

35

27

22

26

32

24

36

15

12

16

29

09

34

23

25

17

13

25

21

21

22

21

28

33

25

22

24

12

26

15

15

25

21

17

05

04

23

26

36

33

02

13

10

09

09

21

09

26

16

22

26

05

05

17

27

21

12

21

14

02

14

33

25

27

22

17

29

24

25

33

23

13

32

29

16

21

36

08

05

25

08

20

16

20

14

29

30

32

35

12

32

13

01

23

09

32

10

29

34

16

29

30

17

12

32

23

13

16

05

23

17

36

08

20

28

27

10

33

29

34

24

17

14

27

09

36

20

29

22

24

09

05

04

17

27

14

33

12

09

26

25

35

20

12

28

16

30

29

31

29

32

08

35

10

20

28

22

14 16

05

25

34

10

20

20

34

15

23

01

12

07

32

29

26

27

34

25

07

36

28

16

23

23

20

23

09

25

02

34

23

23

01

21

35

29

25

12

22

02

20

14

13

09

21

19

28

29

02

24

30

09

13

14

04

35

02

08

32

05

15

03

21

33

24

20

17

32

31

32

08

04

19

33

29

15

33

01

26

05

31

24

13

22

27

13

10

04

23

21

36

34

34

07

12

36

05

32

24

31

10

28

17

26

17

33

36

03

36

08

26

31

25

26

23

23

21

15

34

09

34

24

22

35

34

25

16

01

09

14

07

13

15

21

16

13

26

03

28

22

09

32

36

15

17

32

36

19

23

05

14

04

29

25

10

18

21

33

15

17

35

12

28

09

34

12

18

33

22

08

20

23

28

05

25

33

20

13

03

08

09

33

36

09

12

26

24

10

24

32

20

23

26

28

02

10

05

22

09

33

16

25

23

14

33

33

20

24

24

15

25

23

23 29

36

02

03

35

13

29

36

34

36

31

25

24
20

04

13

16

32

16

36

07

25

22

31

04

10

13

17

24

12

21

35

09

15

28

36

08

36

34

23

36

35

08

27

29

30 28

28

10

17

02

12

24

32

24

27

30

08

33

14

24

27

32

15

02

04

17

22

09

14

15

33

36

13

15

36

26

26

36

10

16

16

25

23

16

28

26

09

34

13

10

26

08

25

27

17

22

18

32

23

22

01

09

34

33

06

09

28

07

28

22

26

34

05

17

20

32

08

28

13

14

10

31

18

19

21

16

35

30

32

09

33 04

26

15

33

17

24

15

25

33

01

25

36

15

35

01

14

30

16

27

08

16
17

25

28

35

04

34

25

32

20

32

33

23

12

17

23

05

03

05

33

17

14

21

35

28

09

16

10

21

23

28

05

31

33

20

29

27

02

25

22

05

33

19

29

01

31

33

26

27

35

22

23

32

01

13

29

06

20

33

18

33

16

17

22

18

01

31

23

12

09

09

26

03

02

24

13

01

17

13

27

08

09

04

05

34

21

09

13

04

10

09

20

22

14

04

14

26

23

29

10

24

34

28

02

21

24

09

27

28

26

20

01

26

08

20

27

27

33

07

23

27

24

23

13

08

33

14

14

35

24

28

15

10

17

26

21

25

12

05

32

09

09

32

23

21

34

13

03

08

10

25

15

16

33

03

14

09

20

26

14

10

30

16

24

25

22

12

26

28

09

36

07

23

36

01

21

23

14

27

23

14

24

24

24

14

33

14

28

27

24

22

08

14

15

25

02

16

36

08

35

32

20

25

24

15

09

10

16

28

14

21

34

13

23

31

08

24

16

36

25

33

05

02

01

26

28

23

08

01

29

08

32

01

34

25

21

17

36

29

14

08

16

05

12

17

08

36

23

08

34

14

23

22

34

16

09

10

27

26

02

17

20

27

15

10

15

09

32

21

02

32

23

30

35

20

13

20

12

35

01

17

16

12

20

17

36

23

08

20

22

22

05

06

20

16

17
15

20

26

09

15

05

14

25

09

05

30

12

24

33

35

22

23

28

27

34

28

12

25

16

10

02

17

21

33

34

26

17

25

06

24

20

12

26

09

21

31

28

13

23

22

16

33

17

09

28

35

04

19

08

14

21

34

19

29

08

27

17

36

19

34

17

10

16

27

14

24

36

13

19

35

28

10

12

17

25

10

32

09

02

04

28

24

20

23

16

23

27

08

29

36

21

12

09

29

27

18

15

14

09

28

26

08

10

12

22

23

14

18

10

20

32

21

36

24

17

22

03

10

05

09

24

26

36

36

25

35

10

24

20

33

25

10

30

28

28

03

20

29

16

31

22

16

28

09

01

09

16

31

36

29

12

16

31

03

23

27

17

17

30

36

10

35

08

25 34

24

09

22

28

33

08

20

22

35

22

20

32

04

16

01

03

33

29

19

14

13

08

16

08

06

32

15

28

24

15

08

25

08

22

03

31

09

14

09

14

30

21

22

02

32

12

36

31
28

21

03

20

36

20

09

13

33

36

36

14

17

22

16

14

17

04

34

17

23

28

17

19

21

26

13

34

17

27

21

24

21

17

22

22

21

32

03

23

05

27

26

14

14

24

12

09

13

09

01

14

12

17

24

36

36

17

16

20

04

13

02

32

16

08

35

15

34

27

08

34

33

31

16

24

14

31

10

29

04

24

01

33

13

20

09

35

04

27

17

02

24

33

29

26

28

24

33

29

32

33

10

34

35

25

07

22

09

05

35

28

09

35

15

34

36

25

10

35

32

26

31

28

35

17

35

33

25

34

23

05

14

01

16

03

10

12

33

08

27

21

01

26

21

25

03

36

35

21

15

16

03

27

10

32

17

13

15

25

36

09

13

27

34

23

15

25

32

23

13

24

14

13

35

20

09

08

33

25

03

05

02

21

23

10

34

02

35

35

12

13

03

16

17

30

36

29

13

27

26

07

03

34

15

35

17

13

30

13

34

18

08

34

08

12

21

32

25

15

13

17

10

21

34

22

36

33

21

13

32

12

01

09

36

22

20

22

14

15

02

17

08

36

25

18

20

25

29

25

19

33

28

17

36

34

22

08

25

24

01

28

25

36

14

13

35

12

13

35

12

12

32

12

23

08

10

25

02

15

01

26

22

35

09

24

35

19

33

09

33

04

08

17

17

25

36

27

12

35

30

26

09

24

33

09

33

23

10

15

27

34

17

36

31

22

28

20

13

27

33

13

32

34

27

02

09

04

25

16

21

33

32

27

09

24

13

34

15

35

15

33

22

09

10

23

14

12

23

18

13

16

35

31

03

25

14

26

22

14

32

14

01

26

34

32

24

28

06

29

25

36

13

05

02

35

08

07

12

08

25

25

18

15

01

24

15

33

25

07

13

33

34

27

15

32

22

13

25

26

05

03

34

20

04

21

26

23

20

32

22

32

32

14

36

13

07

26

34

26

04

15

23

29

08

32

35

33

31

34

35

10

24

02

25

02

32

20

24

36

34

17

20

28

29

25

34

25

16

06

22

21

23

32

23

12

27

24

10

15

22

12

27

24

35

23

07

16

16

32

26

34

33
34

27

21

33

29

20

25

03

05

21

35

24

24

15

08

20

29

21

17

03

33

12

27

35

02

29

25

22

09

27

25

36

35

19

14

34

20

16

36

29

34

22

18

06

14

21

15

09

23

09

26

27

01

34

13

12

02

21

35

13

02

22

30

32

32

02

27

25

12

12

33

32

13

14

13

10

23

36

14

26

08

27

27

12

31

15

34

15

16

14

34

23

05

08

28

34

07

05

27

10

01

08

03

24

25

09

17

28

14

09

34

04

24

29

15

13

01

02

03

29

10

32

13

26

08

27

02

14

25

26

14

20

21

14

02

22

27

33

08

21

24

36

27

36

21

23

28

23

02

34

25

19

35

04

15

22

16

04

07

19

15

20

02

10

27

26

12

21

26

20

09

23

22

17

29

13

24

18

29

20

20

29

32

29

10

26

26

26

10

14

24

24

20

23

24

22

10

34

29

04

27

24

31

30

13

29

36

29

29

23

01

14

17

26

02

10

12

15

17

14

21

35

30

26

24

21

26

04

21

35

17

14

32

36

24

28

09

19

10

07

12

35

33

20

08

33

30

04

26

26

35

18

33

22

26

23

16

22

08

29

23

29

13

21

09

23

16

12

26

22

31

10

04

35

30

32

25

09

33

16

15

10

18

24

21

05

24

29

35

34

28

28

12

25

07

21

02

05

31

28

17

33

07

20

09

01

03

09

21

19

25

26

26

08

22

12

24

20

35

01

25

14

08

19

16

02

05

32

33

10

36

27

10

04

24

15

05

27

28

10

35

22

26

30

19

06

26

07

21

04

35

36

23

30
29

14

12

34

17

35

12

01

13

04

24

29

02

36

04

04

02

13

22

21

06

25

03

36

02

29

35

31

26

16

17

28

22

16

20

31

35

28

21

21

19

16

34

18

26

18

25

10

31

30

01

21

14

01

09

01

21

28

15

01

23

23

01

22

14

32

24

18

26

03

33

04

25

05

23

35

36

09

03

34

03

34

03

01

35

03

21

16

20

01

03

05

13

32

12

05

28

16

27

05

33

32

08

27

17

08

17

23

06

36

05

36

24

33

14

17
10

26

35

23

22

28

36

27

33

14

01

29

22

32

30

15

16

33

15

09

12

07

13

03

14

25

26

10

26

35

24

22

34

28

26

28

08

15

28

20

02

30

35

16

09

35

21

20

27

15

03

28

23

23

32

30

16

13

36

15

28

12

25

01

22

10

24

29

26

33

08

27

07

34

30

18

10

14

09

03

28

28

07

23

23

24

26

16

20

22

05

12

27

31

35

35

08

21

22

36

15

25

10

27

12

14

26

17

09

29

26

34

14

24

32

15

33

27

10

20

32

14

29

32

12

05

17

22

12

23

29

04
03

32

03

12

23

08

10

03

28

10

21

04

35

21

07

29

28

19

14

19

29

03

14

35

01

13

30

25

05

26

08

06

20

29

27

12

26

20

22

28

26

35

27

28

01

12

22

28

33

29

25

29

02

28

22

19

36

35

29

35

21

21

27

16

32

10

17

21

13

25

27

05

02

35

14

36

03

25

34

22

20

15

25

22

24

26

08

28

36

29

23

35

29

24

35

08

09

18

04

28

29

22

28

17

10

31

05

18

08

36

28

29

03

08

27

23

01

08

08

17

35

22

29

20

21

32

24

05

10

25

01

35

26

16

36

14

21

28

15

16

32

33

04

20

33

12

12

09

29

14

15

13

18

12

15

16

32

27

09

31

17

26

02

33

23

03

09

36

05

09

09

34

23

13

17

10

30

34

33

25

10

17

01

35

03

07

14

14

18

35

14

35

06

15

22

35

26

01

32

33

22

13

35

19

15

29

27

22

08

06

23

15

25

27

02

21

04

35

04

12

13

33

14

23

02

21

20

28

23

09

05

16

26

05

16

25

26

05

16

34

36

36

17

24

35

10

13

35

31

05

34

24

36

34

01

08

29

16

27

14

22

12

01

01

12

10

08

31

04

07

33

04

23

30

05

17

18

04

22

27

20

31

24

29

27

29

17

34

07

19

15

04

32

10

36

25

25

20

35

14

26

20

02

33

02

36

31

07

08

17

23

26

12

19

17

32

12

31

26

15

05

28

14

18

36

03

12

23

30

33

06

13

23

27

03

01

24

27

03

05

22

20

15

28

28

12

02

03

35

03

26

24

34

21

05

01

22

32

12

17

21

27

15

09

34

16

32

15

29
21

23

23

29

13

14

05

19

04

36

23

23

26

04

10

09

04

27

32

08

14

01

19

26

33

18

33

33

04

24

36

22

36

33

25

04

08

33

20

25

14

26

19

12

25

19

13

34

20

17

26

27

14

36

07

34

15

35

13

12

10

18

09

04

33

26

32

30

09

07

03

22

32

30

05

04

21

29

32

22

19

34

07

14

09

23

33

27

33

23

02

13

13

04

13

29

13

13

13

25

01

36

26

32

04

18

32

28

05

02

36

02

30

16

18

09

26

05

12

03

35

02

36

16

31

25

07

19

15

34

27

25

31

10

30

29

28

17

30

21

13

05

30

31

15

31

24

02

14

26

08

01

33

36

28

19

01

31

02

35

34

34

13

03

09

19

02

25

18

19

02

09

22

13

25

18

28

33

35

20

12

27

23

21

31

20

35

07

26

27

10

21

03

08

23

02

30

31

06

01

20

35

24

05

17

12

30

08

25

05

17

23

24

26

31

18

27

27

28

16

32

14

06

05

26

33

08

08

25

15

07

04

05

16

05

25

19

02

14

28

19

15

28

05

06

32

32

33

27

28

01

31

28

34

02

19

32

18

05

18

09

19

04

36

06

04

14

10

31

33

18

31

27

36

15

07

12

04

24

27

04

10

08

33

30

10

34

12

18

30

32

36

19

09

10

20

26

14

06

29

19

26

29

16

32

26

33

14

30

14

28

14

36

34

15

31

29

16

03

06

10

18

09

35

14

12

04

17

22

25

22

04

13

19

21

18

29

20

14

27

06

36

35

35

14

22

18

16

28

34

31

31

18

06

16

36

27

16

12

01

27

26

31

22

03

12

29

09

16

22

04

08

34

10

13

02

31

35

18

35

06

03

06

26

07

23

35

08

31

25

23

30

34

28

19

23

12

12

18

29

02

28

04

22

08

09

17

31

24

22

02

06

21

16

23

36

19

07

29

25

23

30

02

10

10

30

01

34

12

04

30

05

14

08

26

29

31

15

03

26

33

16

02

34

15

29

27

30

07

13

35

04

19

21

10

22

27

25

31

02

10

08

34

29

23

10

16

31

07

20

15

29

07

30

35

36

29

07

09

02

16

02

29

19

30

05

19

32

17

30

19

08

19

01

32

31

33

35

07

07

14

32

09

20

27

30

28

19

05

25

26

01

30

10

19

32

29

19

12

05

28

02

33

19

31

26

31

30

26

07

30

21

26

22

31

32

17

29

25

19

07

17

12

05

16

28

27

10

09

09

35

19

33

16

26

28

32

04

18

32

33

24

29

21

06

28

08

17

18

15

22

14

18

33

24

13

02

18

25

31

24

34

17

13

03

23

33

19

18

20

04

31

19

06

03

30

21

17

31

20

12

03

15

08

09

07

12

09

04

16

14

09

17

31

16

31

06

23

09

30

15

22

03

33

19

31

33

31

30

28

33

10

20

23

16

34

03

06

06

23

15

10

16

05

27

05

32

32

04

20

22

15

18

35

31

12

19

07

07

04

03

22

20

15

31

05

22

20

08

16

27

28

33

31

19
19

31

34

15

01

27

20

18

07

33

31

19

06

36

03

12

04

21

21

30

20

24

36

34

32 33

07

31

25

3436

06

13

33

30

06

18

06

14

18

35

26

22

18

30

02

01

15

07

18

27

25

05

29

18

30

15

22

18

31

07

01

30

33

28

32

29

28

23

26

25

31

18

36

34

03

09

18

06

07

06

07

32

30

08

22

18

33

30

22

02

06

26

26

30

19

30

32

31

20

19

19

07

28

01

35

35

04

19

21

18

23

19

36

27

30

23

07

10

07

06

10

10

13

30

06

34

02

18

19

24

28

18

02

19

01

07

13

31

16

28

06

23

06

17

10

19

18

03

08

12

06

31

30

09

24

20

28

32

13

06

07

18

02

07

22

19

36

03

19

28

19

13

30

07

22

18

32

26

10

32

33

29

08

04

06

13

01

27

09

26

18

26

09

18

02

18

06

09

04

25

19

04

16

30

06

01

05

07

18

16

06

01

26

31

03

19

20

27

21

29

20

30

26

14

15

31

30

15

07

03

01

05

35

06

21

29

25

18

33

18

16

34

18

09

06

07

36

05

35

07

09

30

02

25

15

18

07

30

06

06

19

27 35

19

35

07

34

19

34

23

04

18

31

03

09

07

20

07

01

06

18

30

30

01

16

19

18

16

36

04

06

34

07

30

19

12

35

15

31

07

06

06

35

27

18

31

30

36

31

29

18

01

10

18

27

07

01

30

36

06

02

07

29

07

19

04

23

19

18

01

22

30

06

31

18

09

03

07

14

07

01

07

12

15

01

18

3025

29

30

31

31

10

36

06

07

19

31

21

19

30

19

06

19

03

16

03

07

18

36

14

07

19

10

18

01

18

06

32

18

32

19

17

03

30

05

30

06

31

07

23

19

29

01

30

10

31

06

18

18

07

20

01

29

02

30

07

31

16

26

07

30

18

31

19

10

06

21

18

07

18

07

06

31

02

31

07

12

35

12

06

32

18

18

33

28

03

30

06

18

31

07

10

36

06

30

18

28

07

35

33

07

02

03

34

06

33

34

07

30

15

15

07

22

15

31

30

31

22

29

06

18

06

07

31

27

06

19

31

06

07

04

06

31

06

07

01

19

06

31

3527

30

03

05

19

19

21

36

05

08

16

18

06

02

35

30

17

30

31

31

30

07

07

31

07

06

17

18

07

19

31

06

30

12

30

30

14

07

34

02

31

19

31

07

13

06

06

34

13

30

30

07

01

04
04

06

02

06

31

30

18

04

29

31

19

33

19

03

19

18

22

31

28

06

19

34

07

13

02

31

19

01

07

31

07

02

07

23

26

30

18

30

06

03

30

31

19

04

30

19

07
07

19

34

01

19

24

06

02

19

19

19

02

30

30

18

30

30

18

23

30

18

04 02

30

32

05

03

18

30

21

31

36

18

35

30

06

31

07

02

18

10

06

01

19

31

19

19

15

01

31

18

19

30

01

30

03

01

14

19

18

18

06

31

07

05

27

31

09

19

18

06

30

04

03

31

18

31

19

06

30

07

07

19

01

07

19

19

06

23

06

31

26

18

18

04

30

06

30

01

36

07

01

31

31

18

18

07

23

18

30

07

07

18

18

02 01

07

11

06

06

31

19

30

06

18

06

17

07

19
19

30

19

30

18

30

07

31

34

31

30

30

23

14

31

06

18

18

06

07

18

18

30

03

07

06

07

19

30

06

18

18

19

04

18

01

31

31

29

07

08

02

30

30

06

06

06

31

30

03

07

07

06

19

07

18

30

03

11

32

18

02
02

30

04

19

19

15

10

06

31

19

06

07

01

04

07

31

07

27

31

02

31

03

19

05

05

18

19

04
03

20

04

07

12

01

07

03 02

18

05

19

31

03

02

30

19

18

03

02

07

18

06

30

14

04

03

24

06

04

24

05
05

17

05

03
01

02

01

23

25

25

06

07

02

02

13

0405

01

06

02

31

01

06

04
05

01

30

12

05

34

31

02

02

03

19

18

05

30

33

06

30

06

19

19

04
05

0304

18

06

30

07

22

06

07

07

06

06

05
02

31

01

13

06

04

18

19

11

05

27

030103

12

04
03

02

02

06 06
06

06

12

12

04

19

26

22

35

01

04

19

31

02

18

24

03

30

01
02 05 04 03

03

07

26

05

08

07

06

01

18

05

31

01

0204

06

05

07

02

02

11

05 05

06

34

01
04

04

31

30

03

10

22

11

02

30

31

03

13

20

01

01

03

14

25

06

03

01

06

07

19

22

30

06

17

18

06

06

32

13

02

18

31

19

09

03 02

20 2322

09

05

2221

18

24

34

30

20

14

23

01

21

03

22

34

03

31

07

31

05

20

06

23

04

04

05
05

21

27

24 22

03

20
24

22

36

01

23

30

02

19

31

29

01

21

31

1924

07

02

18

01

19

18

30

19

04

14

19

19

06

06

07

32

20

11

16

36

03

18

04

10

08

05

32

06

06

06

01

06

33

04 05

01

15

29

010305
0504

01

35

34

05

07

02

02

05

01

15

02
02

03
01

04

05
04

01

24

03
03

13

0304

12

20

12

09

07

17

02

31

21

06

10

08

11 12

06

06
06

06

32

07

06

13

22

24

16

18

25

06

05

25

06

12

26

27

24

21

12

01

06

01

05

06

21

19

21

10

29

13

25

08

05

30

34

09

28

08

30

24

23

27

04

36

17

03

29

33

11

31

04

34

25

03

22

12

10

22

27

23

31

30

04

04

19

20

15

18

07

07

22

06

02

22

11

36

02

28

12

10

15

29

29

25

27

24

09

07

01

07

09

03

01

06

15

06

04

22

32

34

10

20

27

22

16

28

32

22

06

12

18

15

15

27

09

27

34

14

05

34

27

05

22

03

10

15

19

21

08

13

22

34

04

08

17

30

05

08

28

24

01

03

02

07

03

20

33

35

31

17

10

25

03

02

04

16

26

08

17

24

08

17

05

14

23

29

15

16

14

36

01

20

09

15

35

32

06

21

30

02

04

15

32

01

07

06

22

16

29

20

16

03

12

06

18

21

27

13

05

02

17

07

02

32

13

25

21

28

19

04

34

18

16

35

24

09

26

15

34

20N  17W

17N  17W

19N  17W

18N  17W

01N  22W

01S  20W01S  21W01S  22W

03S  16W

02S  19W 02S  18W
02S  21W

02S  16W

03S  17W03S  19W

02S  17W

02S  22W

03S  23W

03S  18W
03S  21W

01S  17W01S  18W 01S  16W

03S  20W
03S  22W

21N  21W

06N  19W
06N  18W

01S  19W

02S  23W

06N  16W 06N  15W

11N  15W11N  16W

02S  20W

11N  17W

07N  16W

01N  16W

04N  20W

02N  16W

17N  20W

01N  18W

18N  21W

09N  18W

17N  19W

20N  18W

17N  18W

09N  16W

13N  16W

19N  19W

01N  21W

03N  15W

19N  21W

18N  20W

10N  16W

01N  19W

09N  17W

05N  21W

14N  16W

18N  18W

01N  20W

10N  17W

05N  16W

14N  19W

15N  16W

02N  20W

07N  15W

13N  15W

19N  20W

03N  18W

09N  15W

17N  16W

02N  18W

03N  16W

16N  16W

19N  18W

14N  18W 14N  17W

05N  20W

13N  18W

02N  19W

14N  15W

06N  21W

02N  21W

15N  15W

20N  19W

16N  17W
16N  19W

07N  17W

03N  19W

15N  19W

03N  17W

18N  16W

02N  17W

05N  15W

15N  17W

08N  20W

13N  17W

15N  20W

16N  18W

15N  18W

13N  19W

19N  16W

04N  21W

18N  14W

10N  15W

16N  20W

18N  15W

16N  15W

17N  15W 17N  14W

19N  14W

18N  19W

07N  21W

19N  15W

20N  16W

01N  17W

04N  15W

20N  15W 20N  14W

05N  18W

21N  16W

04N  17W

21N  20W

04N  16W
04N  19W 04N  18W

02N  15W

05N  17W

08N  17W

03N  20W

06N  17W

07N  18W

01S  15W

08N  16W

03N  21W

09N  19W

08N  15W

20N  20W

10N  18W

20N  21W

12N  15W12N  16W12N  17W

02S  15W

01N  15W

08N  18W

21N  19W

06N  20W

12N  18W

05N  19W

03S  15W

08N  19W

02N  22W

21N  18W 21N  17W 21N  15W

17N  21W

14N  20W

21N  14W

09N  20W

01N  23W

16N  14W

11N  18W

08N  21W

15N  14W

14N  14W

16N  21W

19N  22W

13N  14W13N  20W

16.5N19W16.5N20W

18N  22W

16.5N18W
16.5N15W16.5N16W16.5N17W

12N  14W
12N  19W

11N  14W

04S  16W 04S  15W

04N  22W

04S  17W04S  18W

01S  24W

16.5N14W

04S  19W

07N  22W

04S  20W04S  21W

17N  22W

04S  22W04S  23W

0

0

0

0

6

6

7

7

6

6

7

7

7

6

7

6

7

6

7

6

5

6

6

6

6

7

6

7

7

6

7

6

7

4

6

6

6

1 4

6

6

6 3

6

6
2

2 13

6

1

7

6

5

7

2

6 6

6

6

6

7

7

7

3

6

6

6

6

4

6

7

7 7

6

7

77

6

6

6

6

5

3

1

6

721

7

2
35

7

1 25 44
1

6

6

7

6

6

77

5

6

5

6

7

2

7

7

7

6

4 3

6

6

7
7

3

7

1

6

4 2

7

7

1

7

1

4

6

1

7

6

7

6

6

7

2

6

7

5

1

5

4

5

2

12

7

3

5

7

3

6

2

6

8

1

2

5

5

1

5

7

42

5

4 3

7

6

7

3

7

6

4

3

3

1

4

1 3 1

2

3 3

4

4

7

42

5

1

2
4

4

5

1

1
2

4

4

3

5

7

3
2

1

7

5

4

6

2

3

1

5

5

3

4 3

4

6

7

1
2

5

2

4

1

6

2

7

1

5

2

1

2

7

4

6

3

1

4

6

3

5

4

3

4

6

5

2

6

6

3

7

5

2

1

2

4

4

6

3

2

1

5 5

3 2

1

7

5

8

1

7

5

1

3

5

2

5

1

5

2

1
4 1

4 1

6

3

1

6

2 43

1

2
3

1

4

5

2

5

7

2

5

6

7

6

1

4

6 5

4

1

3

2

7

8

5 5

5

5

2

8

1

6

4

7

3

6

3

8

7

3

2

6

4

7

3

1

4

9

4

7

1

4

2

6

6

3

4

4

3

2

6

4

2

3

2

1

9

5

6

2

6

3

7

9

6

7

5

5 32

2

4

3

1

5

2

6

1

3

7

1

1

5

8

6

5

8

6

5

1
3

9

6

3

6

7

5

1

6

7

8

6

1

4

7

2

1

2

7

3

9

5

7

4

7

9

6

1

4

2

4

2

5

9

9

8

7

7

2

6

1

3

1

1

8

5

3

9

4

3

7

3

6

2

2

6

6

4

1

7

6

9

5

4

2

7

8

8

5

9

6

9

1

6
1

8

2

2

8

8

3

3

7

9

6

5

6

5

9

9

5

7

2

6

4

1

1

7

1

8

7

6

6

5

6

5

1

6

4

5

8

3

7

1

6

5

2

3

2

9

5

9

3

6

1

8

4

7

7

3

9

9

5

1

2

3

5

2

5

4

9

6

7

6

2

3

6

5

9

7

7

3

4

7

3

1

5

7

5

6

9

8

7

6
3

3

7

4
8

2

4

7

4

2

9

7

2

2

9

4

8

7

4

9

9

4

2

7

7

2

7

3

4

2

5

8

5

7

6

5

1

3

7

8

7

7

9

7 8

2

4

8

8

8

7

1

1

6

1

9

7

6

4

7

3

3

6

6

4

5

3

4

2

1

2

8

6

5

2

5

8

7

9

4

6

4

6

8

7

2

7
8

2

2

3

7

7

9

1

1

1

7

8

3

7

5

5

8

8

2

8

8

1

5

8

5

7

6

7

8

7

5

9

5

3

1

8

9

7

7

2

7

2

2

5

4

8

2

5

9

6

7
4

9

4

3

8

1

7

5

8

7

5

9

1

6

9

1

4

5

8

3

7

6

9

8

9

9

9

8

8

4

88

4

5

9

6

9

2

3

8

2

5

4

8

1

9

3

8

2

4

8

9

9

3

3

4

5

9

4

1

9

3

9

3

9

6

3

8

4

4

9

1

9

1

8

5

9

5

5

2

7

7

9

2

8

2

9

7

6

7

4

5

8

1

5

5

9

9

4

9

3

8

9

4

4

9

5

2

5

4

9

9

7

4

5

4

5

1

9

7

3

8

6

8

1

9

8

2

1

6

2

8

1

2

8

8

8

1

8

7

7

6

3
3

7
8

1

9

4

9

9

8

8

2

3

2

5

2

2

3

8

8

8

8

5

5

6

8

7

5

3

9

3

8

6

8

3

3

2

5

5

7

8

9

3 2

9

8

7

8

5

5

9

4

3

4

9

3

4

5

5

2

1

3

2

4

2

9

9

8

8

3

2

1

8

2

8

9

9

9

4

4

5

3

3

5

9

4

6

5

4

21

2

1

3

4

1

9

4

2

5

6

5

4

7

5

9

9

7

2

1

2

9

8

2

5

2

1

3

9

9

1

8

3

4

7

3

7

3

3

5

3

4

8

2

2

9

6

5

2

2

9

3

8

8

5

9

9

8

8

1

8

8

6

8

9

2

4

8

6

9

9

8

1

3

3

5

5

1

5

2

1

5

7

3

8

9

3

9

3

1

9

9

9

2

8

8

8

6

1

2

9

1

9

5

8

9

9

7

5 4

3

8

4

8

1

9

5

1

9

4

6

2

5

8

6

4

9

1

3

8

8

9

4

61

6

1

3
5

8

8

8

8

4

5

8

2

3

9

3

6

9

4

1

5

7

5

8

3

4

2

5

9

3

6

9

5

2

1

4

3

1

3

5

8

9

4

8

9

8

9

1

2

8

9

8

1

4

8

4

9

9

8

6

9

8

4

9

7

3

1

9

7

2

1

8

8

8

8

8

9

2

4

9

8

5

8

8

1

9

7

8

6

8

8

8

8

4

1

8

3

3

4

8

5

8

9

4

1

8

7

8

6

8

9

1

8

4

8

1

9

5

8

8

9

4

5

4

6

8

2

6

8

2

3

2

3

9

9

1

8

2

9

1

4

5

4

8

8

7

4

3

8

5

4

2

7

4

1

5

1

5
2

8

2

8

9

8

2

5

6

9

2

1

5

8

3

5

8

2

9

9

4

2

5

8

7

9

7

9

4

8

1

5

8

3

3

9

2

9

7

4

5

7

4

3

5

3

2

3

8

2

8

2

1

4

2

8

9

3

3

8

8

2

9

4

2

4

8

9

9

9

1

5

2

8

5

1

8

3

1

8

8

8

8

9

9

6

4

3

5

4

4

4

9

3

9

9

9

2

1

7

8

7

4

9

9

8

3

5

2

3

5

4

8

9

9

2

3

7

9

5

9

1

9

6

5

7

1

4

6

2

9

4

2

1

4

6

6

3

5

9

2

9

4

8

7

9

9

9

4

4

9

3

8

9

3

5

1

5

2

8

1

4

3

9

7

5

9

3

3

5

1

2

8
8

8

3

9

6

2

6

8

7

9

4

9

9

5

1

8

5

7

5

9

3

7

9

2

9

8

9

8

8

1

4

8

6

3

7

8

7

1

4

4

5

1

9

7

3

7

5

6

7

1

5

1

9

8

9

3

2

9

9

2

9

2

7

8

4 3

8

1

1

9

9

8

3

9

1

1

6

8

8

1

8

3

2

6

1

3

8

1

1

1

2

9

2

8

4

9

9

1

2

9

7

6 5

9

8

9

4

9

3

1

3

7

5

3

6

9

6

8

5

9

3

4

9

9

9

1

1

9

1

5

7

8

6

8

9

9

9
4

3

1

1

8

2

8

5

9

8

2

2

3

9
9

4

4

4

1

9

2

8

8

4

1

9

9

1

6

8

9

4

9

4

8

3

3

5

5

9

2

4
9

8

3

6

2

6

8

3

2

5

9

7

9

8

7

5

9

4

9

4

5

4

7

7

7

2

8

4

9

5

1

6

8

3

7

2

1

7

7

3

8

3

5

9

7

3

9

5

7

5

5

1

8

4

6

1

4

2

9

7

6

6

3

1

5

2

9

1

7

3

3

3

9

6

5

1

6

1

7

6

4

2

8

4

3

8

8

2

7

4

6

7

8
7

8

1

1

1

5

1

9

1

4

7

1

8

2

7

6

1

4

5

2

1

9

9

5

1

3

1
7

8

6

9

9

9

9

3

4

2

9

9

8

5

3

9

9

6

1

3

5

6

2

2

5 4

4

9

5

8

9

7

7

6

1

1

9

6

3

8

2

4

6

5

2

6

7

7

5

4

5

8

4

7

9

1

4

5

2

5

3

2

1

4

8

7

4

7

6

5

1

8 9

4
7

6

4

4

8

7

2

4

8

9

7

7

5

5

6

1

6

9

7

9

8

7

5

4

7

2

5

3

1

1

1

2

4

3

8

6

2

6

6

7

4

7

6

4

9

9

9

5

7

3
4

9

8

7

3

4

3

9

7

8

6

7

7

7

3

6

3

7

3

8

2

5

7

6

9

3

6

3

7

4

4

5

6

9

7

1

9

6

4

1

4

2

3

3

7

2

45

7

7

7

3

5

7

2

4

4

8

5

2

3

6

3

1

1

2

2

3

4

5

8

8

7

9

2

8

2

7

7

8

5

3

7

1

8

9

8

8

1

7

3

3

3

8

3

3

6

5

5

5

4

4

4

3

1

7

5

6

6

5

2

2

2

8

6

4

1

3

8

8

3

4 3

7

2

1

1

7

3

2

1 3

1 2
1

5

7

1

5

3

3

2

1

2

5

1

2

7

6

4

2

7

6

1

516
1

9

6

1

3

5

3

4

2

3

6

6

7

6

4

6

3

7

4 3

8

1

2

5

6

5

19

6

7 7

7

7

6

2

6

4

8

6

3

6

34

31

1

6

41 2

6

4

5

2

29

6

4

7

53

3

2
5

18

3

1

6 24 1

5

2

124
4

3

6

5

4

1

2 14

1

3 26 3

31

5

2

1

7

2

0
19

1

31

19

30

31

6

6

18

18

31

30

30

18

19

30

6

31

31

6

1

30

1

19

18

18

19

18

6

4

2

4

35 2

2

1

7

4

1

31

6

1

4

5

7

19

30

18

31

19

18

4

30

1

1

31

31

31

30

19

30

30

18

19

19

18

31

31

4

18

2

3

36

5
1

31

3

6

18

8

18

7

19

1

19

6

30

31

2 5

18

19

31

19

31

30

31

18

1

19

31

1

19

18

19

31

18

1

30

18

19

30

2

30

3

31

18

24

30

31

31

30

31

19

18

19

30

30

2

18

5

30

18

30

4

19

18

31

31

30

19

23

19

5

12

4

30

18

18

4

36

18

19

3

31

19

18

13

6

6

31

18 18

31

12

19

18

31

19

19

30

18

19

18

18

19

30

18

18

18

19

25

31

19

36

3030

31

31

18

2

30

31

30

4

30

31

30

30

18

6

19

18

31

1

31

5

19

18

1

6 5

3

30

18

30

19

19

30

3

31

31

18

18

2

30

6

19

4

31

5

11

29

30

19

31

4

30

18

13

3

19

1

1

31

31

2

12

30

32

31

30

34

25

31

28

31

31

2

30

20

19

24

3

19

16

6

18

31

7

6 5

19

32

23

30

18

6

13

30

4

25

18

21

36

3

18

19

30

12

31

18

19

30

31

31

12

35

12
1

35

32

36

31

19

23

4

24

12

17

30

13

25

3433

13

31

14

20

33

18

19

19

32

31

31

32

1

31

30

19

30

30

18

11

18

11

17

31

16

30

36

19
19

31

30

31

11

26
31

19

35

11

19

24

11

20

3030

11

31

33

33

30

24

11

34

11

19

18

22

18

16

25

18

25

32

22

32

30

18

14

18

18

21

23

11

28

11

21

27

33

31

11

18

19

30

18

34

17

23

33

25

26

18

29

25

34

12

11

24

22

11

11

21

17

14

19

32

11

11

31

18

31

11

25

36

27

11

19

19

29

19

30

12

13

11

12

29

15

29

35

18

29

19

22

18

25

11

35

11

18

32

20

13

10

18

28

32

19

20

11

32

11

15

26

11

31

11

36

20

28

34

11

24

11

11

11

30

33

15

11

30

35

11

11

11

12

11

36

11 12

18

11

35

20

20

30

25

11

11

19

31

35

11

20

11

18

31

23

19

35

16

24

11

11

1913

11

30

11

19

11

33

12

34

35

13

26

19

24

31

36

30

17

12

11

11

25

25

17

13

11

22

15

13

11

14

11

27

11

29

11

32

22

25

17

17

27

22

15

31

30 31

25

11

11

11

36

33

30

34

19

12

17

30

11

31

17

26

22

11

11

18

31

19

11

36

34

11

11

17

11

15

11

19

34

11

11

14

11

30

14

11

26

23

15

11

17

11

11

17

31

11

22

31

25

32

23

11

11

11

33

17

20

10

29

32

19

11

23

10

11

28

17

35

18

11

11

13

11

11

11

11

33

24

11

11

15

11

31

11

20

11

11

11

11

31

30

33

31

18

11

26

34

33

14

35

11

24

12

11

11

14

11

34

19

26

32

30

10

11

21

11

35

19

11

11

36

11

12

19

20

10

11

11

11

11

11

22

11

28

11

36

31

11

11

12

11

32

15

35

31

11

30

30

13

19

34

11

19

11

11

17

11

11

11

11

11

11

11

19

11

24

11

32

28

11

17

11

32

16

27

28

32

30

22

26

12

11

11

11

35

26

29

19

19

11

11

11

34

12

32

11

11

11

30

11

10

21

32

10

16

15

23

33

11

11

30

21

21

11

11

36

16

11

11

28

29

32

6

33

27

31

11

20

27

32

11

24

11

31

11

29

16

24

36

29

22

27

11

30

11

11

11

22

30

18

32

13

11

18

27

16

26

30

11

33

35

23

11

33

32

35

13

16

16

36

11

33

16

17

35

25

14

21

5

29

12

21

25

18

33

19

32

32

33

15

11

11

19

18

23

13

11

13

23

26

11

11

25

20

20

11

12

15

17

26

14

32

30

31

11

23

13

31

15

24

18

11

26

11

27

30

24

11

18

10 12

13

31

10

22

11

16

25

10

32

26

20

19

21

11

12

30

31

13

11

11

33

34

11

10

12

14

13

35

30

34

15

34

11

34

11

11

25

36

11

11

35

13

21

18

35

14

34

11

11

31

10

35

20

22

30

14

29

18

30

30

14

15

18

18

10

32

15

29

30

23

18

17

35

18

24

11

26

31

31

11

29

13

26

10

18

25

10

11

25

20

15

30

14

36

11

14

16

11

11

36

17

18

19

10

12

27

33

24

31

28

10

29

27

11

24

29

31

26

17

14

36

23

17

16

29

20

34

11

32

19

18

21

26

18

11

18

13

35

16

27

15

34

24

11

33

12

24

14

31

18

36

11

11

29

35

23

36

34

36

23

24

31

13

34

28

20

30

17

25

10

13

19

11

35

19

33

23

17

11

11

23

3

28

12

21

25

14

35

33

11

14

11

15

31

28

29

20

28

13

25

16

13

28

19

13

26

23

22

31

19

35

35

14

31

35

35

13

24

19

26

32

18

10

15

14

16

28

28

30

35

30

21

16

22

33 35

30

29

10

27

22

16

29

13

26

20

32

16

27

13

29

20

11

12

11

1

36

10

36

15

13

11

36

36

18

28

30

19

16

31

36

11

22

29

23

35

33

16

25

33

35

32

15

29

19

19

13

26

36

30

35

16

23

18

27

32

16

35

22

23

32

29

13

13

19

15

28

30

23

34

34

12

26

14

27

15

24

16

35

18

27

28

19

28

16

35

11

17

14

20

10

13

13

20

17

23

14

28

22

23

32

12

26

20

18

21

21

35

21

12

12

35

19

15

36

32

34

20

11

11

22

15

27

30

18

24

19

24

33

29

18

24

14

18

19

20

23

35

31

16

16

18

22

15

12

29
30

26

34

13

33

32

26

33

24

13

22

17

10

23

25

26

34

32

31

18

11

13

28

21

12

20 30

15

25

14

18

31

16

30

30

16

14

24

28

36

27

34

25

31

32

17

21

24

31

24

24

31

18

36

11

36

27

15

28

31

12

33

29

12

34

34

11

28

33

31

28

19

1411

20

13

12

33

27

31

30

14

16

14

22

25

13

25

12

18

21

31

28

31

12

23

28

18

13

32

35

13

18

15

35

36

28

24

30

20

25

30

14

36

14

25

23

16

20

25

27

20

14

14

21

25

17

25

15

13

11

25

12

17

35

11

17

32

24

31

33

16

34

12

10

18

33

16

36

15

25

26

24

20

34

15

34

27

36

21

36

17

10

22

36

14

24

13

16

32

34

20

36

20

18

33

22

14

27

17

15

11

21

31

20

30

14

27

34

25

35

14

32

35

24

14

23

29

26

19

23

11

20

30
28

11

12

20

20

29

3019

24

33

32

32

27

16

27

14

28

25

15

17

18

16

12

24

35

11

31

18

19

17

36

21

23

28

14

25

22

26

19

17

34

35

12

34

12

13

25

16

21

35

13

23

17

21

31

16

26

14

14

18

30

28

17

23

25

19

25

36

34

13

34

14

10

33

36

22

14

31

14

33

15

21

13

14

33

25

33

25

14

27

18

32

29

34

26

13

11

22

10

13

25

24

12

17

26

14

19

16

18

19

28

15

19

14

15

17

14

15

15

12

10

35

32

33

19

26

11

14

34

14

10

24

17

30

28

32

23

35

11

32

13

34

21

27

10

36

29

16

24

11

12

32

10

36

22

21

14

25

16

21

29

24

29

35

16

26

13

22

24

17

27

22

12

25

26

33

36

36

17

25

27

15

22

35

31

31

36

13

20

19

13

21

23

17

23

17

25

32

23

15

33

10

20

14

32

19

35

17

2521

32

25

20

19

21

14

29

29

32

27

33

19

21

13

33

30

12

28

16

17

34

16

14

35

25

19

33

14

32

13

11

25

15

14

21

29

18

16

35

19

34

16

23

17

29

12

10

36

35

24

20

24

26

14

34

10

18

21

17

36

12

25

16

29

28

26

24

30

33

20

19

21

28

28

15

26

33

13

29

33

16

15

21

34

12

20

35

13

29

26

21

13

28

29

18

36

22
23

21

14

34

28

16

22

28

15

28

14

27

35

26

12

20

26

18

31

15

22

12

21

33

13

16

35

23

20

14

25

17

22

12

27

32

33

11

18

18

27

26

35

10

26

21

23

26

27

20

33

29

16

36

23

29

32

16

16

16

15

31

31

17

10

13

32

19

14

10

25

19

33

20

25

13

30

17

19

27

25

26

36

31

23

24

25

13

32

32

21

23

12

35

18

36

20

34

12

25

18

34

26

13

30

16

13

24

18

35

24

29

17

36

31

34

27

25

24

27

26

36

33

14

14

18

22

23

18

23

21

35

12

22

23

26

14

10

19

17

15

13

27

31

27

30

27

33

36

27

26

22

25

27

34

24

29

23

15

27

32

18

35

26

13

13

26

15

23

25

33

17

31

19

30

33

15

33

34

33

20

13

31

24

13

17

33

17

27

27

14

34

35

21

29

17

22

34

15

18

12

23

19

29

20

35

19

34

10

19

22

10

28

31

12

13

22

26

12

11

15

23

32

20

13

22

13

26

17

36

33

26

19

19

16

15

20

22

28

31

31

13

10

18

10

24

23

25

32

36

20

33

29

23

25

13

20

15

36

34

36

32

27

34

34

28

20

27

18

25

11

10

36

13

18

21

33

19

20

13

13

27

14

35

23

32

12

24

23

33

36

12

10

32

24

29

25

35

23

10

12

16

21

25

13

29

12

33

15

24

26

12

24

21

35

23

16

23

19

12

26

24

1415

32

10

13

12

12

31

17

35

18

12

28

27

30

12

15

23

22

18

12

23

36

22

26

25

21

24

26

35

17

28

21

24

20

27

15

14

35

14

24

35

29

33

33

31

36

29

35

33

25

25

15

19

10

10

24

30

25

10

20

26

27

20

26

34

18

13

26

35

18

20

24

29

28

22

32

17

12

27

17

25

17

33

35

13

36

27

14

16

29

17

22

25

26

17

11

25

17

28

19

23

33

19

20

20

20

16

24

3534

20

36

35

22

36

12

30

16

25

10

19

28

17

33

30

31

28

21

24

20

30

16

30

26

34

18

23

20

10

24

13

26

30

17

21

23

18

34

16

13

31

17

35

25

19

16
15

22

14

13

30

29

23

36

12

14

29

23

28

10

15

25

35

25

12

19

23

14

20

27

25

23

28

35

32

10

35

32

34

23

31

22

2421

20

24

13

27

12

33

23

34

22

21

23

33

13

17

26

29

34

26

19

26

27

36

26

24

29

21

10

35

34

15

34

10

33

12

33

20

32

29

27

22

21

29

26

16

16

26

14

14

17

32

35

29

25

30

23

32

21

17

26

31

10

34

35

26

35

12

32

10

35

23

29

34

36

18

27

32

14

12

28

35

25

14

12

28

17

34

17

30

13

12

24

27

16

28

20

13

14

35

25

17

27

29

31

33

32

29

21

10

26

31

28

36

33

26
26

20

15

20

35

13

36

28

27

10

17

35

35

22

30

24

32

36

28

15

34

32

28

11

21

36

32

32

20

32

24

14

22

29

14

17

28

35

17

31

1415

22

12

34

17

28

33

29

29

15

36

30

34

19

14

17

23

33

10

24

33

28

33

25

18

33

24

34

17

17

20

18

26

13

34

22

33

29

20

26

33

34

24

15

28

12

13

20

22

27

32

32

34

15

34

34

12

35

16

34

16

36

28

32

35

32

36

28
22

36

24

35

25

20

23

26

16

21

18

20

36

24

17

28

15

22

16

24

36

32

16

31

23

12

30

36

23

34

29

23

21

27

33

22

12

22

22

29

32

33

27

10

15

14

21

28

23

17

30

23

17

36

20

34

20

28

2

32

25

32

16

36

32

34

18

36

23

36

22

21

12

10

21

23

23

21

34

34

21

36

19

27

27

21

26

26

14

28

36

16

26

20

30

27

13

26

23

27

16

10

34

16

17

17

14

10

14

36

16

14

21

20

2925

22

24

27

27

28

12

24

13

29

22

25

16

26

33

33

12

10

35

17

16

13

31

16

15

22

12

23

28

24

12

36

33

23

35

10

26

33

15

29

30

14

28

33

12

29

28

13

30

18

28

35

33

27

36

34

23

32

25

14

15

16

28

17

25

27

28

15

34

28

17

14

23

34

29

17

15

34

24

31

16

20

32
33

16

34

27

29

17

17

26

21

14

20

20

26

18

31

23

27

28

33

13

36

13

25

24

13

20

32

26

34

25

26

17

21

13

35

25

14

22

33

23

34

22

27

20

28

32

27

26

17

35

10

17

11

36

14

14

33

34

20

25

20

13

24

36

16

10

34

17

35

28

10

10

10

17

15

15

35

20

14

27

12

21

24

31

19

28

23

22

33

23

32

21

36

35

32

10

14

25

14

36

28

22

25

32

32

32

13

33

19

29

14

23

15

29

36

26

20

13

19

10

34

18

26

27

13

10

30

12

20

28

22

33

32

15

29

23

27

19

17

29

24

31

12

13

16

23

16

21

14

14

29

16

36

24

10

15

25

12

26

24

36

32

10

27

26

26

30

14

30

14

18

12

33

13

29

14

18

29

31

15

32

32

10

15

31

22

23

15

32

21

15

23

36

36

34

17

23

14

23

14

25

36

14

21

12

28

16

27

36

29

16

31

16

23

27

24

12

26

26

32

22

22

21

12

10

33

16

36

27

23

35

13

14

14

25

36

23

10

21

27

21

13

10

24

35

32

20

21

36

33

31

20

14

18

29

15

15

12

22

21

26

33

27

17

33

34

25

13

19

27

35

13

13

23

15

25

11

33

35

20

32

20

28

31

20

24

31

22

24

10

33

35

35

32

14

17

13

29

10

22

35

24

33

15

22

20
24

28

33

18

20

35

16

27

33

23

16

22

32

19

36

24

29

35

10

28

34

26

21

27

32

24

32

27

18

20

24

21

10

20

12

22

16

10

15

36

29

36

27

14

35

26

30

33

20

14

28

28

13

23

33

26

28

12

18

36

33

30

27

36

26

14

21

33

32

21

11

32

34

36

15

10

12

12

27

21

21

18

21

21

13

22

25

21

16

15

35

23

16

22

32

35

25

21

17

34

20

23

10

23

17

26

15

36

22

30

15

26

26

19

19

24

15

26

10

31

28

29

32

14

16

20

33

21

29

21

21

23

10

30

32

15

35

36

22 23

17

24

26

36

15
18

31

35

21

32

24

26

25

17

33

29

16

21

24

15

14

14

14

32

31

15

27

21

27

27

32

22

35

21

24

27

15

20

16

29

34

15

18

32

33

16

35

16

21

19

29

15

20

33

16

20

27

21

26

17

12

30

25

16

12

17

12

21

12

32

34

23

27

28

22

21

20

15

26

32

24

14

21

17

29

32

36

36

13

27

35

22

21

25

28

16

21

17

25

20

15

21

31

23

29

12

27

29

12

34

35

13

17

23

17

20

34

32

13

16

12

27

16

17

12

35

10

32

12

26

15

27

15

27

14

24

25

14

23

20

27

16

27

14

17

18

28

27

20

25

30

20

30

29

32

10

23

22

14

25

18

21

31

16

36

16

10

35

25

16

33

26

28

36

25

14

13

29

22

36

26

23

15

26

34

15

24

28

15

21

14

31

28

22

33

27

10

32

25

34

16

18

32

35

26

25

29

20

21

33

12

13

16

22

32

25

24

24

17

16

32

34

23

29

14

22

13

31

32

23

33

14

12

34

17

21

24

28

30

25

20

12

29

33

32

32

34

13

26

17

32

16

29

36

25

28

32

20

35

24

14

3233

33

28

14

23

17

26

36

23

20

15

33

21

32

23

36

25

35

10

16

10

23

28

28

34

13

29

19

16

26

17

33

10

32

16

32

33

12

14

33

32

21

28

23

29

29

21

12

34

33

33

34

14

29

26

33

30

21

10

16

17

22

28

29

20

22

26

10

23

12

34

12

13

33

17

22

21

15

36

32

29

25

15

34

21

36

15

35

25

16

29

12

24

36

14

13

26

18

16

26 25

34

22

16

27

21

23

24

15

21

36

22

35

35

16

22

21

28

21

35

36

23

23

15

22

15

36

29

33

17

23

32

13

17

20

17

21

35

36

12

18

25

12

24

27

13

24

35

22

35

36

14

13

29

17

17

13

23

10

21

29

15

10

15

14

15

33

36

35

23

20

20

15

33

32

29

33

14

26

36

22

26

15

13

32

14

33

27

30

24

17

23

28

10

35

33

28

15

35

27

35

10

25

12

19

26

35

24

14

25
28

27

28

29

12

23

23

34

35

33

19

10

29

29

14

34

24

22

22

31

22

28

34

12

19

19

34

35

23

18

29

21

36

21

13

13

30

26

10

20

26

22

16

16

31

17

31

13

24

10

14

15

36

34

31

29

29

23

24

26

27

35

20

17

14

26

29

18

22

14

27

17

13

13

23

15

34

33

24

10

33

16

25

31

19

17

32

23

33

34

34

36

27

29

25

34

23

17

27

21

13

24

16

10

15

13

22

27

14

17

21

35

13

26

10

23

29

16

35

23

17

26

22

16

23

28

33

18

20

32

26

21

34

12

26

14

13

35

15

26

24

29

21

27

13

16

32

33

14

16

24

19

15

26

22

22

35

17

32

22

34

22

20

17

21

29

12

33

32

15

25

28

28

33

28

36

35

28

27

28

24

24 20

19

31

23

22

10

14

10

15

33

29

10

34

22

23

16

12

33

15

30

32

34

27

17

29

13

20

28

28

18

10

25

35

23

19

15

15

14

10

13

16

24

10

35

13

17

20

15

24

33

20

16

23

21

35

34

16

28

22

27

22

22

29

21

34

26

29

17

25

22

23

14

35

33

27

24

26

34

24

32

33

21

30

33

28

21

25

31

25

13

29

16

13

17

34

14

33

18

34

19

32

17

28

26

28

16

34

33

32

17

16

26

36

28

32

26

19

28

15

20

14

10

32

33

34

28

25

29

27

16

14

17

14

36

36

33

27

28

22

15

21

34

26

20

20

23

16

17

28

21

22

21

28

35

34

28

17

26

34

25

34

26

20

17

16

28

13

10

27

23

24

25

23

32

35

17

17

31

23

32

16

36

12

34

26

28

22

30

22

25

21

36

23

10

25

29

29

16

12

28

10

36

29

15

20

23

23

13

10

27

20

22

14

29

16

15 19

35

19

15

35

17

20

34

29

12

36

13

34

14

22

14

10

21

22

17

16

28

29

13

23

14

13

31

34

12

26

23

14

17

29

12

21

32

15

35

25

18

11

28

17

26

34

27

24

14

27

10

29

36

25

32

15

24

26

15

10

25

15

34

13

27

35

17

36

34

34

10

12

20

24

27

10

27

34

17

17

27

15

29

15

36

12

33

24

24

15

22

32

10

18

17

20

36

36

27

13

29

21

24

33

12

33

16

13

14

22

15

25

32

35

24

28

34

25

14

26

23

16

28

28

36

34

29

17

36

10

12

27

28

30

16

12

10

25

30

35

34

29

18

17

12

25

20

21

26

13

26

15

21

13

33

12

19

32

17
20

10

20

26

29

26

28

35

27

22

36

20

16

12

17

21

29

29

20

20

36

16

21

23

14

16

29

34

24

14

30

16

28

32

26

26

36

22

20

20

27

21

25

27

10

15

30

32

16

14

15

35

23

20

26

25

28

25

23

28

12

26

20

15

16

29

33

26

22

36

17

28

25

11

22
22

20

28

29

15

28

21

32

32

32

17

17

34

28

27

18

36

29

24

16

21

32

24

22

27

31
34

24

20

21

32

26

34

22

32

25

29

17

22

23

24

35

25

14

19

24

13

28

26

35

22

35

28

26

12

14

34

32

26

29

17

15

12

16

29

33

22

34

10

32

29

36

31

27

36

23

19

20

22

23

15

17

28

29

10

32

26

33

20

17

18

35

25

15

13

34

12

12

14

32

12

29

18

28

23

14

22

32

21

10

22

20

20

12

28

31

21

16

31

12

10

15

27

32

15

33

32

11

16

14

35

17

25

13

23

20

27

34

26

21

23

13

27

34

36

31

15

34

17

15

29

13

25

33

10

12

28

17

17 22

21

10

23

21

10

31

33

23

14

20

16

21

29

20

10

19

29

18

16

15

16

24

22

21

22

36

28

20

28

15

26

19

28

32

16

12

21

16

24

10

21

20

15

26

15

18

31

17

17

36

10

23

16

17

30

36

30

34

36

19

24

13

10

22

34

32

28

12

28

36

27

29

35

27

35

28

16

24

15

33

16

24

13

22

17

21

12

24

30

12

32

31

33

36

34

17

26

24

29

27

35

26

25

26

19

27

24

15

35

27

36

33

23

10

24 24

25

33

14

17

15

10

14

23

18

14

35

34

17

36

22

15

33

10

14

20

12

25

17

15

27

27

30

15

26

15

14

13
13

36

29

19

25

35

22

34

29

14

27

3235

34

24

19

17

16

20

10

19

16

12

13

21

22

36

29

34

35

28

22

17

34

16

17

17

32

15

19

15

33

32

35

36

35

22

12

19

16

10

16

36

21

33

24

21

26

34

31

14

36

26

30

31

21

28

24

32

26

35

13

14

35

22

22

28

26

16

14

33

29

26

25

34

34

23

28

13

17

10

22

3433

12

12

10

32

29

29

29

15

12

21

23

14

21

13

30

14

34

24

34

22

33

20

35

20

24

33

16

26

29

15

31

14

34

28

15

28

35

10

28

13

24

28

27

28

28

25

15

14

24

14

29

22

26

14

24

12

12

21

25

13

17

34

35

36

34

14

26

26

32

16

36

36

33

25

33

24

19

14

20

26

10

16

12

25

33

25

21

15

20

24

22

27

17

28

12

24

36

34

10

14

28

15

12

12

16

12

17

35

10

18

17

31

20

13

33

16

27

23

15

12

28

16

22

33

13

17

29

24

30

15

13

18

14

12

16

26

25

21

32

23

17

15

12

28

26

25

16

14

24

26

13

27

17

12

24

13

16

22

21

10

25

25

28

34

22

26

35

31

24

24

25

21

26

17

27

32

19

35

14

18

24

10

28

13

18

22

16

32

28

28

26

35

21

17

10

26

27

27

31

25

26

35

30

14

30

32

20

10

31

16

10

25

25

21

25

13

36

20

14

20

32

25

33

35

16

16

12

14

24

36

16

20

10

22

20

14

11

29

36

27

26

16

36

36

30

20

14

27

18

19

36

19

32

24

14

24

10

23

25

23

33

13

10

10

21

27

10

17

16

16

28

33

29

17

25

33

34

30

13

32

31

31

24

15

23

18

16

33

20

22

18

13

28

12

29

34

28

14

21

30

24

34

32

29

15

16

15

29

26

25

36

22

20

32

21

27

14

15

36

22

17

36

27

20

13

35

29

29

15

16

20

15

15

32

25

13

24

17

23

15

27

35

20

33

34

20

12

23

35

22

27

32

20

31

18
24

32

19

36

21

22

33

28

27

15

20

24

27

10

23

30

23

19

34

14

32

13

12

13

30

22

13

30

24

29

28

31

25

29

18

31

29

34

28

16

10

34

16

17

32

10

20

13

32

22

20

27

32

12

34

20

21

13

24

31

14

21

20

12

22

13

32

24

27

31

15

31

23

28

30

10

27

13

28

22

36

19

30

14

21

10

13

33

15

30

20

20

29

34

28

33

20

27

25

12

13

15

33

15

34

31

17

16

27

34

35

24

30

18

36

24

29

21

21

25

29

23

26

35

32

26

36

20

15

27

27

12

14

17

36

26

34

17

34

34

13

32

21

21

36

17

12

13

12

24

35

15

10

36

24

22

20

12

12

23

25

12

29

24

27

34

10

36

34

35

24

36

34

33

16

28

24

14

35

10

20

16

10

12

33

33

12

23

27

20

25

10

14

18

20

19

12

21

33

10

16

23

27

13

34

31

36

17

17

19

24

28

22

27

35

30

29

23

17

24

12

17

27

16

25

32

17

25

25

10

23

27

17

33

10

15

21

13

30

10

16

12

32

17

16

24

24

29

31

13

14

19

15

13

36

16

14

19

28

31

17

19

18

35

22

21

22

25

36

22

35

30

13

23

21

18

19

32

35

28

11

33

18

31

32

36

22

10

3020

14

29

24

27

29

13

30

12

29

12

17

32

20

26

26

26

25
25

30

30

31

25

14

16

28

25

14

20

36

17

33

36

35

36

33

33

10

14

16

24

28

20

30

27

18

23

27

23

25

13

12

29

10

36

27

34

21

16

18

13

18

24

19

16

27

26

30

35

21

10

15

15

23

29

28

23

14

25

20

27

29

21

22

12

29

13

15

29

18

16

22

25

32

35

35

25

27

30

36

13

15

28

16

24

15

29

25

21

27

36

26

23

23

16

20

19

28

27

34

35

21

10

16

15

13

10

36

10

10

12

17

31

29

20

26

30

21

32

15

25

26

20 20

16

30

19

10

17

35

15

25

36

21

33

27

25

26

13

21

12

20

35

24

20

17

30

29

20

35

28

2829

23

33

27

13

26

16

28

17

12

24

31

35

36

34

35

24

27

24

18

19

30

27

21

22

17

14

17

34

13

29

32

29

31

33

15

16

21

15

21

20

26

13

29

19

10

17

25

12

20

28

18

21

14

18

23

32

27

29

29

34

21

36

25

36

31

22

33

33

24

26

26

29

30

16

23

31

31

30

36

13

34

19

27

15

10

22

17

29

16

10

27

33

15

28

35

15

17

13

24

31

35

10

34

33

30

36

36

33

16

14

16

29

28

18

31

16

27

27

24

12

18

13

21

18

25

17

33

14

35

32

9

10

35

33

26

22

29

22

12

21

16

33

10

33

27

22

32

23

18

36

26

21

27

20

29

22

30

13

25

23

23

22

16

28

10

15

21

22

33

34

19

19

34

32

24

10

28

12

12

23

13

21

33

28

13
17

34 34

23

21

25

32

14

28

15

21

13

16

33

18

28

16

28

16

13

19

23

20

22

33

25

15

13

34

24

34

23

28

19

22

27

27

18

13

25

20

34

32

29

10

12

27

36

18

22

27

25

27

17

36

22

19

26

26

19

22

12

12

18

25

28

16

28

14

30

12

26

29

23

21

12

29

17

25

22

17

10

10

10

31

15

6

34

14

27

24

13

28

12

36

36
26

18

20

14

35

22

30

22

24

26

20

20

35

31

26

17

28

16

26

18

12

1416

29

25

28

19

33

32

34

29

30

17

21

23

32

33

10

31

36

28

27

18

21

16

27

22

36

10

21

22

14

34

30

28

18

29

25

28

35

30

10

23

36

36

21

10

33

14

33

21

14

23

15

25

32

23

36

22

27

31

10

12

10

21

33

16

32

16

34

10

22

27

26

23

36

24

15

18

30

35

31

25

14

18

23

22

13

10

30

27

28

28

31

17

10

31

34

18

19

10

18

26

29

16

32

23

26

36

35

36

30

22

15

12

24

25

16

24

23

34

10

20

29

30

10

17

20

25

19

1716

12

17

31

10

13

27

30

19

24

24

27

20

22 22

25

31

21

35

24

13

24

20

10

17

16

14

25

14

18

29

24

31

26

20

16

24

28

31

21

32

29

30
35

27

30

15

10

12

25

15

26

27

20

10

33

24

19

24

17

20

16

23

28

34

20

18

23

25

27

12

24

20

1513

28

13

22

12

20

10

31

21

15

15

30

21

36

30

19

21

28

19

13

30

15

31

32

25

18

24
19

34

10

30

25

27

19

13

5

12

29

19

12

26

17

36

34

33

27

32

25

21

10

28

34

13

29

15

12

29

10

33

34

30

16

36

10

12

25

35

30

12

23

29

30

31

13

15

21

12

27

18

19

18

16

31

32

27

25

10

29

33

33

22

32

30

23

31

15

22

27

22

19

29

30

15

22

16

25

18

24

30

20

25

31

22

12

16

34

22

31

31

21

21

26

31

31

30

29

27

18

30

10

19

36

10

22

35

17

31

17

30

22

22

13

24

25

20

22

22

27

12

12

30

10

13

19

18

13

18

17

21

28

30

12

10

26

31

26

31

14

33

19

28

19

30

21

18

23

18

28

18

15

23

23

18

35

22

22

22

20

29

31

26

34

36

31

26

12

29

19

35

27

28

27

10

28

27

21

30

35

35

24

10

14

23

19

19

20

33

31

11

24

32

17

15

25

18

10

18

12

36

22

20

15

19

33

10

30

21

24

32

23

30

18

30

17

23

27

16

24

36

28

20

21

25

21

28

21

21

18

10

17

13

23

24

24

10

18

26

15

22

16

36

31

18

2219

36

18

21

22

11

32

21

22

30

35

22

10

18

12

36

15

17

29

21

28

19

20

15

16

14

27

3

18

10

25

25

15

25

15

2

30

25

10

26

14

18

24

12

34

29

16

22

10

15

19

31

19

2319

10

22

12

15

13

2

35

31

12

29

19

10
13

36

19

27

34

18

12

35

25

24

10

20

24

13

26

14

22

21

15

19

31

32

10

22

30

19

28

30

32

31

21

26

24

34

34

23

19

26

24

31

13

27

33

19

22

7

13

12

22

33

31

12

32

19

18

29

30

19

36

30

30

18

30

23

26

36

9

31

13

23

31

12

19

25

5

31

30

27

10

30

25

11

25

18

24

19

20

22

18

19

18

30

19

20

14

30

19

6

33

30

4

23

21

36

5

13

19

31

24

15

7

20

2

25

18

29

17

36

36

11

13

2 1

26

19

30

18

3

12

32

14

5

24

23

4

23

18

31

12

24

30

31

28

32

2422

1 6

19

18

7

36

12

33 33

23

36

33

19

25

25

5

35

26

34

20

34 31

22

13

24

35

11

11

36

24

12

24

30

6

7

24

10

30

36

14

24

21

32

12

23

3

13

12

24

20

14

17

14

23

13

35

12

26

7
5

11

18

31

14

25

4

10

7

18

12

14

35

36

19

18

20

36

2

19

10

34

36

35

3

35

19

18

27

30

26

18

29

36

25

31

4

33

6

23

24

24

11

1

31

30

32

24

14

36

17

9

19

18

11

22

13

30

19 21

12

32

33

23

30

20

29

8

34

30

5

34

35

22

1

31

12

35

36

31

21

25

16

2

24

10

36

24

6

2019

18

3

1

13

13

14

29

36

11

6

10

12

24

24

2

17

16

33

19

14

32

13

36

2

19

11

23

11

25

20

33

20

32

24

32

14

22

26

23

34

32

11

34

21

13

3635

12

34

33

17

36

20

5

25

35

1

14

35

36

26

26

23

25

30

24

33

32

11

23

31

18

15

19

13

24

35

12

16

14

12

13

23

11

25

18

14

32

19

22

30

30

31

31

19

21

18

12

29

20

31

30

12

19

18

31

30

19

18

36

1

25

2

12

24

8

25

35

24

13

31

19

35 36

24

13

23

12

26

22

25

2

13

21

34

15

20

36

32

22

12

14

31

29

13

24

31

36

30

8

24

19

18

10

20

10S 16E

11S 16E 11S 17E 11S 18E

07S 21E

11S 20E 11S 21E

08S 17E

11S 19E

13N 15E

09S 18E
09S 21E

10S 18E 10S 19E

06S 21E

10S 20E
10S 17E

09S 17E
09S 20E

11N 15E

05S 20E

02S 16E

10S 14E 10S 15E

03S 18E

02S 18E

03S 16E

04S 22E

09S 16E
09S 19E

07S 17E

01S 17E

12N 15E

04S 16E

01S 18E

04S 19E

09S 15E

06S 15E

11N 19E

02S 17E

11N 20E

09S 14E

06S 16E

01S 19E

03S 15E

01S 15E

04S 21E

11S 15E

05S 17E

05S 23E

06N 23E

03S 17E

06N 22E

07S 22E

02S 20E

11S 14E

01S 14E
01S 20E

11N 18E11N 17E

06S 17E

01S 22E
01S 16E

12N 19E

07S 14E

05S 15E

05S 21E

02S 19E

06S 18E

04S 15E

11N 16E

05S 18E

02S 21E

06S 20E

07S 18E

05S 14E

07S 15E

06N 21E

07S 20E

03S 19E

01S 23E

13N 18E

12N 17E

06S 14E

12N 18E

07S 19E

04S 14E

13N 17E

06S 19E

08S 16E

05S 16E

13N 16E

01S 21E

11N 14E

02S 15E

12N 16E

03S 20E

06S 22E

02S 14E

02S 22E

04S 20E

04N 17E

04S 18E

01N 15E

05S 22E

04S 17E

10S 21E

05S 19E

03S 14E

03S 21E

03N 17E

01N 17E

07N 19E

02N 17E

03N 19E

02N 15E
02N 19E

08N 21E

01N 18E

08N 19E

04N 19E

01N 19E

05N 14E

06N 19E

08N 22E

02S 23E

03N 15E

01N 16E

09N 15E

02N 16E

04N 18E

06N 18E

02N 23E

01N 20E

09N 19E

07N 15E

02N 25E

06N 15E

03N 23E

02N 20E

08S 22E

02N 24E

04N 16E

03N 18E

07N 18E

04N 14E

03N 25E

07S 16E

03N 14E

06N 17E

09N 17E

05N 17E

07N 16E

01N 21E

08S 14E

03N 16E

09N 18E

01N 14E

07N 22E

02N 18E

01N 23E01N 22E

07N 23E

03N 24E

04N 23E

09N 21E

01N 24E

08N 16E

04N 21E 04N 22E
04N 15E

03N 22E

08S 18E

02N 21E 02N 22E

08N 17E

04N 20E

07N 14E

05N 20E

06N 14E

08S 21E

05N 16E

02N 14E

05N 19E
05N 15E

12N 14E

03N 21E

03S 22E

05N 21E

07N 21E

08S 19E

07N 17E

08N 18E

08S 20E

08N 15E

13N 14E

04N 24E

06N 20E

02N 26E

05N 22E

03N 20E

06S 23E

08S 15E

09N 16E

08N 14E

09N 22E

06N 16E

05N 18E

03S 23E

09N 14E

04S 23E

05N 24E

08N 20E

07N 20E

10N 17E 10N 18E

03N 26E

09N 20E

01N 25E

10N 19E
10N 15E 10N 16E

13N 19E

12N 20E

10N 21E

07S 23E

06N 24E

11N 21E

10N 14E

01S 24E

10N 20E

12S 21E12S 20E12S 19E

04N 25E

12S 18E

08N 23E

10N 22E

12S 17E12S 16E12S 15E12S 14E

07N 24E

02N 27E

02S 24E

03N 27E

09S 22E

14N 16E14N 14E 14N 15E

04N 26E

19

30

31

29

0506

08

17

07

18

32

19 20

33

30

29

11

32

36

04

11

30

14

33

14

11
11

28

35

28

15

32

30

21
21

12

16

19

33

21

26

22

27

10

0203

34

21

35

31

22

06

23

34

18

31

04

29

15

02

07

17

08

36

07

22

01

32

14

20 24

10

26

10

27

21

35

03

22

24

01

19 23

27

13

24

29

21

25

26
28

16

23 20

13

28

13

09

01

18

28

12

32

23

34

09

24
24

20

12

02

25

3634

08

30

19

32

10

02

26 2527

04

03

35

15

33

04

20

05

17

05

14

26

20

22

29

16

06 03

29 27

24

19

30

22

28

2323

25

31

09

05

15

31

09

23

25

14 13 18

12

13

17 16 15 14

01

15 13

05

09

24

15

25

33

16 181718

23

33

15 14 13

31

25

04

10

36

32S 65E
32S 66E

31S 64E 31S 65E

33S 66E

31S 66E

32S 64E

33S 65E

31S 63E

95

90

85

80

275

270

265

260

255

250

245

240

235

230

225

220

215

210

205

200

195

190

185

180

175

170

165

160

155

150

145

140

135

130

125

120

115

110

105

100

456

344

340

272

266

334

334

326

326

326

254

254

332

332

332

336

336

252

252

330

330

330

328

328

328

238

238

492

490
490

458

458

256

256

480
480

250

250

250

482482

476

476

236

236

478
478

494494

472

472

488
488

474

474

248

248

468

468

224

224

338

338

338

338

226

226

466

466

484
484

496

496

486
486

470

470

470

234

234

278

222

222

464

464

344

460

460

354

354

240

240

306

306

246

246

352

352

352

244

244

462

462

220

220

346

346

308

308

324

324

324

348

348

228

228

350

350

312

312

310

310

218

218

232

232

302

302

304

304

342

342

342

342

356

356

356

314

242

242

216

258

258

340

340

498
498

358

358

230

230

322

322

322

276
276

316

316

316

320

320

320

360

360

360

318

318

318

290

214
214

280

292

260

260

300

300

288

262

262

274

282

282

500
500

210
210

364 364

294

212

212

286

286

362

362

272

284
284

264

264
266

296

270

208208

268268

502

298

298

456

448.7

448.7

448.7

between 238 ft. 
    and 240 ft.

between 212 ft. 
    and 214 ft.

§̈¦40

§̈¦40

§̈¦10

Needles

Davis Dam

Laughlin

Franconia

Lake Havasu
    City

Topock

Parker

Poston

Bouse

Quartzsite

Blythe

Desert Center

Palo Verde

Cibola

N  e  v  a  d  a

C  a  l  i  f  o  r  n  i  a

A  r  i  z  o  n  a

  Lake

Havasu

Palo Verde
Diversion Dam

P 
a 

r k
 e

 r

V
 a

 l 
l e

 y

Parker
 Dam

Explanation

E River miles110

Flood Plain

Drainage ditch

# USGS streamflow-gaging station

# Bureau of Reclamation streamflow-gaging station

Accounting-surface contours—Shows equal elevation 
   of accounting surface. Interval is 2 feet

! Location of river water-surface elevation measurements
Location of drainage ditch water-surface elevation measurement!

78

§̈¦10

§̈¦10

177

62 

62 

§̈¦40

§̈¦40

£¤95

£¤95

163

68

§̈¦40

§̈¦40

§̈¦10

72

95

95

C
olorado

River

210

P
a l

o
  

  
V

e r
d

e  
  

 V
a l

l e
y

M
o

h
a

v
e

        V
a

l l e
y

C
ib

o
la    V

al ley

Scientific Investigations Report 2008-5113
Plate 2

Version 1.1
U.S. Department of the Interior
U.S. Geological Survey

Prepared in cooperation with
the Bureau of Reclamation

MAP LOCATION

NV UT

AZ

CA

Base from U.S. Geological Survey

digital data, 1:100,000, 1982

Universal Transverse Mercator projection

Zone 11, Datum NAD27

Available at http://pubs.usgs.gov/sir/2008/5113

Map Showing the Accounting Surface Around Lake Havasu and in Mohave, Parker, Palo Verde, and Cibola Valleys
and in Adjacent Tributary Areas in Arizona, Nevada, and California

By
Stephen M. Wiele, Stanley A. Leake, Sandra J. Owen-Joyce, and Emmet H. McGuire

2009Printed on recycled paper

114°0'0"W

114°0'0"W

115°0'0"W

115°0'0"W

35°0'0"N

35°0'0"N

34°0'0"N

34°0'0"N

Area of river aquifer along river reaches

Area of river aquifer around reservoirs—Number is
   elevation of accounting surface, in feet

SCALE 1:200,000

NATIONAL VERTICAL DATUM OF 1929

2 0 2 64 8 10 MILES

22 0 4 6 8 10 KILOMETERS

448.7

Wiele, S.M., Leake, S.A., Owen-Joyce, S.J., and McGuire, E.H., 2009, 
Update of the accounting surface along the lower Colorado River:
U.S. Geological Survey Scientific Investigations Report 2008-5113, version 1.1

http://pubs.usgs.gov/sir/2008/5113
lliu
Callout
Applicant: David and Cathy ClevelandAPN: 0660-251-84-0000

lliu
Rectangle

lliu
Callout
Applicant: Slocum/CincottaAPN: 0660-151-25-0000

lliu
Rectangle

lliu
Callout
Applicant: Michael and Tina KennaAPN: 0650-431-18-0000

lliu
Rectangle



Exhibit 
 

September 14, 2016, Lower Colorado Water Supply Project  
 
County  APN Owner Current use  

(AF/YR) 
Future use 
(AF/YR) 

Total use 
(AF/YR) 

San Bernardino 0660-251-84-
0000 

David and Cathy 
Cleveland 

0 1 1 

San Bernardino 0660-151-25-
0000 

Joe Slocum and 
Joel Cincotta 

1 0 1 

San Bernardino 0650-431-18-
0000 

Michael and Tina 
Kenna  

1 0 1 

 




















	1. Weekly Lower Colorado Water Supply Report
	2. forecast
	3. 2016-9-14 All Figures
	Upper Colorado Region Water Resources Group
	River Basin Tea-Cup Diagrams
	USDA United States Drought Monitor Map

	2016.09 MWD
	Drought_ENSO_aug2016_handout-final
	RESOLUTION LCWSP 2016-1 
	LCWSP project locations - 9-14-2016
	Exhibit
	mou-doi-cnra-saltonsea-signed
	August 2016 Minutues-Draft.pdf
	Minutes of Meeting
	COLORADO RIVER BOARD OF CALIFORNIA
	Thursday, August 11, 2016




